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VISION

To deliver innovation and quality to our customers by following a
progressive and on time approach and further the cause of a
sustainable future by promoting an eco friendly approach in all our
operations.

MISSION

To be a foremost Company receptive to the needs of

our customers, acknowledge for consistently
providing fine quality products and services by
understanding the customer’s behaviour and
preparing fully to meet the challenges of global
market and to maximize profit by making best
efforts in production planning, quality of products and

making strategies.
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NOTICE OF 34™ ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Notice is hereby given that the 34™  Annual General Meeting of the Shareholders of IDEAL SPINNING MILLS
LIMITED will be held at 404/5, Business Centre 4th Floor Mumtaz Hasan Road Near “SBP" Karachi on Friday Oclober
28, 2022 at 11:30 a.m. to transact the following business:-

1. Toconfirm Minutes of the Last Annual General Meeting held on October 28, 2021

2. To receive, consider and adopt the Audited Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended on 30th
June, 2022 together with the Directors’ Report and Auditors’ Report thereon.

3.  Toapprove and declare final cash dividend of Rs. 2.00 per share i.e. @ 20.00 % as recommended by the Board of
Directors for the year ended June 30, 2022

4.  To appoint Auditor for the year 2022-2023 and to fix their remuneration. The present auditors M/s. Riaz Ahmed &
Co., Chartered Accountants, retire and being eligible have offered themselves for reappointment.

5. Totransact any other business with the permission of the chair.
By@:r of the Board

Karachi MUHAMMAD NADEEM
Dated: September 29, 2022 Company Secretary
NOTES:

1.  The Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed from 21 October 2022 to 28 October 2022 (both
days inclusive). Transfer received at the Share Registrar office M/s. F.D Registrar Services (SMC-Pwt) Ltd, 17th
Floor Saima Trade Tower —A, LI. Chundrigar Road Karachi 74000 at the close business on 20 Oclober 2022 be
treated in time.

2. A member entitied to attend and vote at this meeting may appoint any other member as his/her proxy to attend the
meeting and vote instead of him/her. The proxies in order to be effective must be received by the Company not
less than 48 hours before the meeting. CDC Account holders will further have to follow
the under mentioned guidelines as laid down in Circular No.1 dated January 26, 2000 issued by the Securities &
Exchange Commission of Pakistan.

3.PARTICIPATION IN THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

A member entitied to participate and vote at this meeting is also entitled to appoint another proxy to participate and
vote on his'her behalf through video link. Proxies in order fo be effective must be received at the Registered Office
of the Company duly stamped and signed not later than 48 hours before the time of the meeting

FOR APPOINTING PROXIES

a. Incase of individuals, the account holders or sub account holders whose registration details are uploaded as per
regulations, shall submit the proxy form as per the above requirements. The proxy form shall be witnessed by two
persons whose names, addresses and CNIC numbers shall be mentioned on the proxy form. Copies of CNIC or
the passport of the beneficial owners and the proxy shall be furnished with the proxy form

b.  In case of corporate entities, the Board of Directors' resolution / power of attorney with specimen signature of the
person nominated fo represent and vote on behalf of the corporate entity, shall be submitted (unless it has not
been provided earlier) along with proxy form to the Company

4. CONFIRMATION OF “FILER" STATUS OF INCOME TAX RETURN FOR APPLICATION OF RATES PURSUANT TO
THE PROVISIONS OF FINANCE ACT, 2022:

Pursuant to the provisions of Finance Act, 2022, effective July 01, 2022, reforms have been made with regards to
deduction of income tax. For cash dividend, the rales of deduction of income tax, under section 150 of the Income
Tax Ordinance, 2001 are as follows:

a. Rate of tax deduction for filer of income tax returns 15.00%
b. Rate of tax deduction for non-filer of income tax returns 30.00%

In case of joint account, each holder is to be treated individually as either a filer or non-filer and tax will be deducted on the
basis of shareholding of each joint holder as may be notified by the shareholder, in writing to the Company / Share
Registrar. If no notification is received, each joint holder shall be assumed to have an equal number of shares.

The CNIC number / NTN detail is now mandatory and is required for checking the tax status as per the Active

—_— e
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The CNIC number / NTN detail is now mandatory and is required for checking the tax status as per the Active Taxpayers
List (ATL) issued by the Federal Board of Revenue (FER) from time to time

5. PAYMENT OF DIVIDEND THROUGH BANK ACCOUNT OF THE SHAREHOLDERS:

In accordance with the section 242 of the Companies Act, 2017 cash dividend can only be paid through electronic
mode directly into the respective bank account designated by the entitled shareholder. Shareholders are
requested to provide their bank account details (IBAN format) directly to our share registrar (for physical shares) or
to their respective participant / broker (for COS shares) as the case may be. Form for updating of bank account
details (IBAN Format) is available at Company's website i.e. www.apl.com.pk. In case of unavailability of IBAN, the
Company would be constrained to withhold dividend in accordance with the Companies (Distribution of Dividends)
Regulations, 2017.

6. EXEMPTION FROM DEDUCTION OF INCOME TAX | ZAKAT:

Members seeking exemption from deduction of income tax or are eligible for deduction at a reduced rate are
requested to submit a valid tax certificate or necessary documentary evidence as the case may be. Members
desiring non-deduction of zakat are also requested to submit a valid declaration for non-deduction of zakat.

CDC account holders are requested to submit their declaration for non-deduction of zakat to the relevant member
stock exchange or to CDC if maintaining CDC investor account.

7. SUBMISSION OF COMPUTERIZED NATIONAL IDENTITY CARD (CNIC) FOR PAYMENT OF FINAL CASH DIVIDEND
2021-22 :

Pursuant to the directives of SECP, CNIC number of shareholders is MANDATORILY required for payment of
dividend. Shareholders are therefore, requested to submit a copy of their valid CNIC (if not already provided) to
the Company on its registered address / Share Registrar. In the absence of a member's valid CNIC, the Company
will be constrained to withhold payment of cash dividend to such members. CDC account holders are requested to
submit attested copy of their CNIC to the relevant member stock exchange or to CDC if maintaining CDC investor
account,

8. CIRCULATION OF ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS THROUGH EMAIL

SECP through its Notification SRO 787(1)/2014 dated September 8, 2014, has allowed the circulation of Audited
Financial Statements along with the Notice of Annual General Meeting to the shareholders of the Company through
email. Therefore, shareholders who wish to receive the soft copy of Annual Report are requested to send their email
address. The consent form for electronic transmission can be downloaded from the Company's website. The
Company shall, however, continue to provide hard copy of the Audited Financial Statements to its shareholders, on
request, free of cost, within seven days of receipt of such request.
9. PLACEMENT OF FINANCIAL ACCOUNTS ON WEBSITE
Pursuant to the notification of the SECP (SRO 634(1)/2014) dated: 10th July 2014 the financial Statements of the
Company have been placed on Company’s website at www.idealsm.com
10. DEPOSIT OF PHYSICAL SHARES INTO CENTRAL DEPOSITORY:
As per Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2017, every existing listed company is required to replace its physical
shares with book-entry form. Therefore, the shareholders having physical shares requested to convert the shares
into book entry.
11. UNCLAIMED DIVIDENDS AND SHARE CERTIFICATES
Shareholders of the Company are hereby informed that as per the record, there are some unclaimed/ uncollected
Junpaid dividends and shares. Shareholders who could not collect their dividends/shares are advised to contact
our Share Registrar M/s. F.D Registrar Services (SMC-Pvi) Ltd 17th Floor, Saima Trade Tower-A, |.1.Chundrigar
Road, Karachi during working hours. Ph: 0092-21-32271905 Email: fdregistrar@yahoo.com to collect/enquire
about their unclaimed dividend or shares, if any,
12. FOR VIDEO CONFERENCE:
At least seven days prior to the date of meeting on the demand of members residing in a city who hold ten percent of
the total paid up capital of the company, the facility of video-link will be provided to such members in that city enabling
them to paricipate in the Annual General Meeting through video-link facility.
13. CHANGE OF ADDRESS AND QUOTE FOLIO NO. IN CORRESPONDENCE
Members are also requested to notify any change in address immediately. The shareholders are further requested
to quote their folio number in all correspondence with the Company and at the time of attending the Annual
General Meeting.

—_— e
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CHAIRMAN’S REVIEW
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

The Board of Directors (the Board) of Ideal Spinning Mills Limited (ISML) has performed their duties
diligently in upholding the best interest of shareholders of the Company and has managed the affairs of
the Company effectively and efficiently. The Board has exercised its powers and has performed its duties
as stated in the Companies Act 2017 and the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance)
Regulations, 2019 (the Code).

The Board has actively participated in the strategic planning process, enterprise risk management system,
policy development, and financial structure, monitoring and approval

All the significant issues throughout the year were presented before the Board or its committees to
strengthen and formalize the corporate decision making process and particularly all the related party
transactions executed by the Company were approved by the Board on the recommendation of the Audit
Committee. The Board has ensured that the adequate system of internal control is in place and its regular
assessment through self-assessment mechanism and /or internal audit activities.

The Board has prepared and approved the director's report and has ensured that the directors' report is
published with the quarterly and annual financial statement of the Company and the content of the
directors' report are in accordance with the requirement of applicable laws and regulations.

The Board has ensured the hiring, evaluation and compensation of the Chief Executive and other key
executives including Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary, and Head of Internal Audit.

The Board has ensured that adequate information is shared among its members promptly and the Board
members are kept abreast of developments between meetings.

The Board has exercised its powers in light of the power assigned to the Board as per the relevant laws
and regulations applicable on the Company and the Board has always prioritized the Compliance with all
the applicable laws and regulations in terms of their conduct as directors and exercising their powers and
decision making,

Necessary Board agenda and related supporting documents were duly made available to the board in
sufficient time before the Board and its Committee Meetings. The non-executive and independent
directors are equally involved in important decisions of the board.

Financial performance of the Company was also very good. Company achieved gross profit of 18% as
compared to 16.50% in the last financial year. Earnings per share increased to Rs. 32.56 from 20.39 per
share as compared to the last financial year. After tax profit remained at Rs. 323.033 million with 27.17%
increase in sales revenue.

Muhammad Saeed
Chairman
Faisalabad

September 29, 2022
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DIRECTORS' REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS

The directors of Ideal Spinning Mills Limited feel pleasure to present 34" Annual Report
accompanied by the Audited Financial Statements of the company for the year ended June 30,

2022.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND BUSINESS REVIEW:

Despite challenging business environment, the current financial year was the most
successful year of your company by the grace of Allah Almighty. Sales revenue of your
company increased by 27.17% to the highest ever sales figure of Rs. 6,095.257 million in last
five years, as compared to Rs. 4,793.145 million during the corresponding period. Your
company earned profit after tax of Rs 323.033 million for the year under review as compared
to Rs 202.304 million during the previous year. The net profit translated into Earmnings per
Share (EPS) of Rs.32.56 as against Rs.20.39 of last year,

The operating results of the company are summarized as follows:

r r

2022 2021
(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)

REVENUE 6,095,257 4,793,145
COST OF SALES (4,995,548) (4,002,325)
GROSS PROFIT 1,099,709 790,820
DISTRIBUTION COST (121,389) (127,336)
ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES (314,364) (248,665)
OTHER EXPENSES (37.531) (31,627)
OTHER INCOME 29,721 7,681
FINANCE COST (140,889) (94,096)
PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 515,257 296,777
TAXATION (192,224) (94,473)
PROFIT AFTER TAXATION 323,033 202,304
EARNINGS PER SHARE - BASIC

AND DILUTED (RUPEES) 32.56 20.39

Ideal Group
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ECONOMIC AND INDUSTRY OVERVIEW:

Breaking all earlier records amid increasing political instability and economic challenges,
Pakistan’s currency dropped to a new low against the US dollar. The price of one dollar closed
at Rupees 205.50, the highest level in the country’s history.

Under the agreement between the government and the IMF, the prices of petroleum
products have significantly increased. Due to inflationary hikes, the prices of import and raw
material are getting harder to manage, price hikes results in shortage of raw material also
while the business of export remains more profitable. The company faced challenge of higher
interest rates.

Pakistan’s government has hiked fuel prices removing fuel subsidies in an attempt to
trim the fiscal deficit and secure critical support from the IMF for the cash-strapped
economy resultantly company has paid large amount for electricity bills.

However, the company’s sound financial policies, outstanding products, pioneering
technologies and efficient production processes were the key element in managing the
company’s stability.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINITIES:

Risk assessment is an on-going process that highlights numerous uncertainties that poses
potential threats which may hinder the accomplishment of objectives of the Company. If
these risks are not being addressed in timely manner, may culminate in loss. Such risks and
uncertainties can arise both from external as well as internal factors within the Company.
Risks which may hinder operations of the Company are as follows:

Strategic Risks: Strategic risks are the uncertainties and untapped opportunities embedded
in strategic intent. These risks are key matters for the Board of Directors, and impinge on the
whole business, rather than just an isolated unit.

Commercial Risks: Commercial risks refer to potential losses arising from the trading
partners or the market in which the Company operates.

Operational Risks: Operational risks refer to risks resulting from breakdowns in internal
procedures, people and system.

Financial Risks: Financial risk is an umbrella term for multiple types of risk associated with
financing, profitability, liquidity and credit.
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Health Safety and Environment:

Company believes in and is fully committed to improve Health, Safety and Environment
standards to achieve sustainable performance. Your Company was quick to implement
the Standard Operating Procedures (SOPs) to combat any climatic change.

Corporate Social Responsibility:

The Company admits its Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) towards the society and
believes in supporting the community.

Internal Control System:

The Board of Directors understands their responsibility towards system of internal control
and has implemented sound, efficient and effective controls and regularly monitors the
same.

Thus, the Company maintains established control framework comprising clear structures,
authority limits and accountabilities within the ambit of well understood policies and
procedures.

The internal control system implemented is fully adequate for ensuring effective and
efficient conduct of operations, safeguarding of Company assets, compliance with
applicable laws and regulations and reliable financial reporting.

Statement of Compliance with The Code of Corporate Governance:

The company has fully complied with the requirements of the Listed Companies (Code of
Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019. A statement to this effect is annexed with this
annual report.

FUTURE OUTLOOK

It is hoped that the financial results of the Company will continue to improve in the coming
year, as the Company plans to heavily invest in modernizing and Replacement of machinery
during the upcoming year which will continue to bear fruits in future. The company has
decided to enhance self-energy generation to lower production costs. As the global economy
recovers from the effects of the pandemic, we remain hopeful that the Government continues
its business supportive policies for textile sector which will go a long way in supporting the
Country's exporting industries.
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BOARD COMPOSITION, REMUNERATION AND MEETINGS:
The Board’s composition and detail of the directors and meetings attended is as under:
Composition of the Board:
Category Male Female Total
Executive Director 2 - 2
Non-Executive Director 3 1 4
Independent Director 2 - 2
Total 7 1 8
Detail of the directors and meetings attended:
Name of Directors Designation Attendance
Mr. Muhammad Saeed Chairman (Non-Executive Director) 4
Mr. Amjad Saeed Chief Executive Officer 4
Mr. Omer Saeed Executive Director 4
Mrs. Rubina Amjad (Female) Non-Executive Director 4
Mr. Ahsan Saeed Non-Executive Director a
Mr. Khizer Saeed Non-Executive Director 4
Mr. Muhammad Asif Independent Director 4
Mr. Muhammad Azhar Independent Director 4

The company has a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of its
Directors in accordance with the Companies Act, 2017 and the Listed Companies (Code of
Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019.

The remuneration, including the Directors fee for attending the board meetings paid to the
Directors and Chief Executive Officer is disclosed in Note 35 of the financial statements

CHAIRMAN'S REVIEW
The Directors hereby endorse the Chairman’s review report on performance of the company.

QUTSTANDING STATUTORY PAYMENTS:
All outstanding payments are nominal and of routine nature.

RETIREMENT BENEFITS FUNDS:

The Company operates un-funded gratuity scheme for its employees as reflected in the
financial statements.




IDEAL SPINNING MILLS LIMITED 34" Annual report 2021-22 | @

Ideal Group

AUDITORS:

The present auditors M/S RIAZ AHMAD & CO. Chartered Accountants, being eligible offered
themselves for re-appointment for the year 2022-2023 as recommended by the audit
committee.

PATERN OF SHAREHOLDING:

Pattern of shareholding as on June 30, 2022 is annexed.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS:

All transactions with related parties are carried out at arm'’s length basis in the ordinary course of
business and are in compliance with the applicable provisions of the Companies Act 2017. The
prices are determined in accordance with comparable un-controlled price method. The company
has complied with best practices on transfer pricing as contained in listing regulations of Stock
Exchanges of Pakistan (PSX).

BOARD COMMITTEES:

The Board in compliance with the Code of Corporate Governance has established following
committees and their composition is as under:

A. Audit Committee:

Name Designation
Mr. Muhammad Azhar Chairman
Mr. Muhammad Saeed Member

Mr. Ahsan Saeed Member

B. Human Resource And Remuneration Committee:

Name Designation
Mr. Muhammad Azhar Chairman
Mr. Ahsan Saeed Member
Mrs. Rubina Amjad Member

C. Nomination Committee:

Name Designation
Mr. Omer Saeed Chairman
Mr. Ahsan Saeed Member

Mr. Khizer Saeed Member
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D. Risk Management Committee:

Name

Mr. Ahsan Saeed
Mr. Omer Saeed
Mr. Khizer Saeed

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE:

34" Annual report 2021-22 @
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Designation
Chairman
Member

Member

The Board recognizes that well defined corporate governance processes are vital to
enhancing accountability. We are committed to ensuring high standards of corporate
governance to maintain stakeholder value. The Board has been diligent and has contributed
effectively in guiding the Company in all its strategic affairs. The Company keeps close co-
ordination with the Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan and the Pakistan Stock
Exchange and complies with the Code of Good Corporate Governance in the letter and spirit.
The statement of compliance of best practices of Corporate Governance is annexed.

CORPORATE AND FINANCIAL REPORTING FRAME WORK

In compliance with listing regulations of Pakistan Stock Exchange and as required under the
Companies ACT, 2017, your directors are pleased to state as under:

1. The financial statements prepared by the management of your company present fairly its
state of affairs, the result of its operations, cash flow and changes in equity.

2. Proper books of accounts of the company have been maintained.

3. Appropriate accounting policies have been consistently applied and accounting
estimates are based on reasonable and prudent judgment.

4. International Financial Reporting Standards, as applicable in Pakistan, have been
followed in preparation of financial statements. The system of internal control is sound in
design and has been effectively implemented and monitored.

5. There is no doubt upon the company's ability to continue as a going concern.

6. There has been no material departure from the best practices of corporate governance,

as detailed in the listing regulations.

7. Key operating and financial data of last six years in summarized form is annexed.

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Appropriations:

The Board of Directors in its meeting held on 29-09-2022 proposed final cash dividend of
Rs.2.00 per share, for approval of the members in Annual General Meeting.
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Other events:

A large scale flood caused many devastating effect on the economy. The Flood struck
just before the harvest of key crops including cotton, rice and maize resultantly The
Company might face shortage of raw material in future due to high prices.

Except above, there is no material change and commitment affecting the financial
position of the Company which have occurred between the end of the financial year of
the Company to which the financial statement relates and the date of the report.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

The Board places on record its appreciation for loyalty and devotion to work, by staff and
workers for the company. The relationship between management and workers remained very
cordial and we hope that these will further improve in the years to come.

On Behalf of the Board

acnl Ul

Amjad Saeed Omer Saeed
Chief Executive Officer Director
September 29 2022
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Statement of Compliance

With Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019

IDEAL SPINNING MILLS LIMITED
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2022

The company has complied with the requirements of the Regulations in the following manner:-
1. The total number of directors is eight as per the following:
a. Male: Seven
b. Female: One
2. The composition of the board is as follows:
Category Name
a. Independent directors Mr. Muhammad Azhar
Mr. Muhammad Asif
b. Non-executive directors Mr. Muhammad Saeed
Mr. Ahsan Saeed
Mr. Khizer Saeed
c. Executive directors Mr. Amjad Saeed
Mr. Omer Saeed

d. Female director Mrs. Rubina Amjad

Board of Directors is of the view that considering the volume of business, independent
directors should not be more than two as required by these regulations. Hence, the
fraction of independent directors has not been rounded up.

3. The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than
seven listed companies, including this company.

4. The company has prepared a code of conduct and has ensured that appropriate steps
have been taken to disseminate it throughout the company along with its supporting
policies and procedures.

5. The Board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy and
significant policies of the company. The Board has ensured that complete record of
particulars of the significant policies along with their date of approval or updating is
maintained by the company.

6. All the powers of the Board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant

matters have been taken by the Board/ shareholders as empowered by the relevant
provisions of the Companies Act 2017 “the Act” and these Regulations.
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7. The meetings of the Board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his absence,
by a director elected by the Board for this purpose. The Board has complied with the
requirements of Act and the Regulations with respect to frequency, recording and
circulating minutes of meeting of the Board.

8. The Board have a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of
directors in accordance with the Act and these Regulations.

9. The Board has already arranged Directors' Training program for the following:

Name Category

Mr. Omer Saeed
Mrs. Rubina Amjad
Mr. Ahsan Saeed
Mr. Khizer Saeed

Executive Director
Non-Executive Director
Non-Executive Director

Non-Executive Director

Moreover, our following three directors meet the exemption criteria of minimum 14
years of education and 15 years of experience on the boards of listed companies,
hence are exempt from Directors’ Training Program:

Mr. Muhammad Saeed

Mr. Amjad Saeed

Mr. Muhammad Asif

Non-Executive Director
Executive Director
Independent Director

10. The Board has approved appointment of Chief Financial Officer, Company Secretary
and Head of Internal Audit, including their remuneration and terms and conditions of
employment and complied with relevant requirements of the Regulations.

11. Chief financial officer and Chief Executive Officer duly endorsed the financial
statements before approval of the Board.

12. The Board has formed committees comprising of members given below.-

a. Audit Committee

Mr. Muhammad Azhar Chairman

Mr. Muhammad Saeed Member

Mr. Ahsan Saeed Member
b. HR and Remuneration Committee

Mr. Muhammad Azhar Chairman

Mr. Ahsan Saeed Member

Mrs. Rubina Amjad Member

—_— e
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c. Nomination Committee

Mr. Omer Saeed Chairman
Mr. Ahsan Saeed Member
Mr. Khizer Saeed Member

d. Risk Management Committee

Mr. Ahsan Saeed Chairman
Mr. Omer Saesed Member
Mr. Khizer Saeed Member

13. The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed, documented
and advised to the committee for compliance.

14. The frequency of meetings of the aforesaid committees during the financial year ended
June 30, 2022, were as per following:

Audit Committee: Quarterly
HR and Remuneration Committee: Annually
Nomination Committee: Annually

a 0 T

Risk Management Committee: Annually

15. The Board has set up an effective internal audit function who is considered suitably
qualified and experienced for the purpose and is conversant with the policies and
procedures of the company.

16. The statutory auditors of the company have confirmed that they have been given a
satisfactory rating under the Quality Control Review program of the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and registered with Audit Oversight Board of
Pakistan, that they and all their partners are in compliance with International
Federation of Accountants (IFAC) guidelines on code of ethics as adopted by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan and that they and the partners of the
firm involved in the audit are not a close relative (spouse, parent, dependent and non-
dependent children) of the Chief Executive Officer, Chief Financial Officer, head of
internal audit, company secretary or director of the company.

17. The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to
provide other services except in accordance with the Act, these Regulations or any
other regulatory requirement and the auditors have confirmed that they have observed
IFAC guidelines in this regard.

18. Explanations for non-compliance with requirements, other than regulations 3, 6, 7, 8,
27, 32, 33 and 36 are below:

Sr. Requirement Explanation of Non- Regulation
No. Compliance Number
1 | Directors’ Training As per the Chapter VI 19(iii)
It is encouraged that by 30 June | (Directors’ Training Program). 19(1)
2022, all directors on the Board | The Independent director Mr.
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Sr. Requirement Explanation of Non- Regulation
No. Compliance Number
have acquired the prescribed | Muhammad Azhar did not attend the
certification under any director | director's training program due to tight
training program offered by |schedule. However, company is
institutions, local or foreign, that | arranging directors' training program
meet the criteria specified by the | as early as possible.
Commission and approved by it.
2 | Directors’ Training The Company is arranging
Companies are encouraged to | directors’ training program for its 19(3)
arrange training for at least one | female executive.
female executive every year under
the Directors’ Training Program
from year July 2020.

Hesyp @w/

Signatures

MUHAMMAD SAEED
CHAIRMAN
29 September 2022

R

Signatures

AMJAD SAEED
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
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KEY OPERATING & FINANCIAL DATA
FOR LAST SIX YEARS

PARTICULARS 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017
(Rupees in Millions)
FINANCIAL POSITION
Paid up capital 99.200 99,200 99,204} 99200 99216 99.200
Fixed assets at cost / revalued amount 2871105 2312.58 1,997.710 1,941 467 1,970,104 1,725.353

Frved assets {Leasc) at cost z E > < .

Accumulared depreciaton 1,140,293 1,039.79 946,906 852,366 HH2.118 810,784
Current assets 1,606,192 1492735 1,053.24 965,143 TOT.269 567.733
Current habibties 16374064 1.474.008 1,102.113 1,152.62 HH8.029 T10.435
INCOME

Sales 6,095,257 4,793,15 3923725 3.512.935 2718918 2.202.691

Oither income 29721 7.081 11.389 300,040 6421 3.654
Pre tax Profit/ (loss) 513.257 206,777 146,668 96,039 24,182 {114.562)
Taxation (192.224) (94.473) (39.721) (36.924) (18.963) R.776)

STATISTICS AND RATIOS

Pre tax profit/ (loss) to sales %o H.450 6.19 3.74 2734 (1,89 (3.2000)
Pre mx profit/ (loss) to capital % 519410 299.17 147 85 96.81 2437 {115.486)
Current rato 1:0.98 101 19557 1:84 1:.80 1:.80
Paid up value per share (Rs.) 1000 10,00 1000 1006 10,00 10,00
Earnings after tax per share (Rs.) 32,56 20,39 10.78 5.96 .53 {11.828)
Cash dividend % 20 18 13 12 7.50 -

Break up walue per share (Rs.) 137.06 103.42 GY.54 55.36 50,92 40,950
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REVIEW REPORT
To the members of Ideal Spinning Mills Limited

Review Report on the Statement of Compliance contained in Listed Companies (Code of
Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of
Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2019 (the Regulations) prepared by the Board of Directors of
Ideal Spinning Mills Limited (the Company) for the year ended 30 June 2022 in accordance with the
requirements of regulation 36 of the Regulations.

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the
Company. Our responsibility is to review whether the Statement of Compliance reflects the status of
the Company’s compliance with the provisions of the Regulations and report if it does not and to
highlight any non-compliance with the requirements of the Regulations. A review is limited primarily
to inquiries of the Company’s personnel and review of various documents prepared by the Company
to comply with the Regulations.

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the
accounting and internal control systems sufficient to plan the audit and develop an effective audit
approach. We are not required to consider whether the Board of Directors’ statement on internal
control covers all risks and controls or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such internal
controls, the Company’s corporate governance procedures and risks.

The Regulations require the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon
recommendation of the Audit Committee, place before the Board of Directors for their review and
approval, its related party transactions. We are only required and have ensured compliance of this
requirement to the extent of the approval of the related party transactions by the Board of Directors
upon recommendation of the Audit Committee.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the
Statement of Compliance does not appropriately reflect the Company's compliance, in all material
respects, with the requirements contained in the Regulations as applicable to the Company for the
year ended 30 June 2022.

RIAZ AHMAD & COMPANY
ChaTered Ac tants
- C_:d- d

\
it s O

Faisalabad
Date: September 29, 2022
UDIN: CR202210158X0e5Lg1fC
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
To the members of Ideal Spinning Mills Limited
Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the annexed financial statements of Ideal Spinning Mills Limited (the
Company), which comprise the statement of financial position as at 30 June 2022, and the
statement of profit or loss, the statement of comprehensive income, the statement of
changes in equity, the statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information, and we state that we have obtained all the information and
explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the
purposes of the audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us, the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss, the statement of
comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows
together with the notes forming part thereof conform with the accounting and reporting
standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the information required by the Companies
Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), in the manner so required and respectively give a true and fair
view of the state of the Company’s affairs as at 30 June 2022 and of the profit, other
comprehensive income, the changes in equity and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as
applicable in Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards
Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters
were addressed in the context of our audit of the financial statements as a whole, and in
forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these matters.
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Following are the key audit matters:
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The Company is investing significant
amounts in its operations and there
are a number of areas where
management judgment impacts the
carrying value of property, plant and
equipment and its respective
depreciation profile. These include
among others, the decision to
capitalize or expense costs; and
review of useful life of the assets
including the impact of changes in
the Company’s strategy.

We focused on this area since the
amounts have a significant impact
on the financial position of the
Company and there is significant
management judgment required
that has substantial impact on the
reporting of the financial position for
the Company. Therefore, considered
as one of the key audit matters.

For further information, refer to the
following:

- Summary  of  significant
accounting policies, Property, Plant,
Equipment and Deprecation (Note
2.2 to the financial statements).

- Property, Plant and
Equipment (Note 14 to the financial
statements).

Sr. | Key audit matters How the matter was addressed in our
No. audit
1. | Capital expenditure

Our procedures included, but were not limited

to:

Assessed, on a sample basis, costs
capitalized during the year by
comparing with the relevant underlying
documentation, which included
purchase invoices and other related
documents.

We tested operating effectiveness of
controls in place over the property,
plant and equipment cycle including the
control over whether costs incurred on
activities are capital or operating in
nature.

We evaluated the appropriateness of
capitalization policies and depreciation
rates.

Assessed whether the disclosures are
made in accordance with the applicable
financial reporting framework.

—_— e
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Inventories as at 30 June 2022
amounting to Rupees 961.398 million,
break up of which is as follows:

- Stores, spare parts and
loose tools of Rupees
102.350 million

- Stock-in-trade of Rupees
859.048 million

Inventories are stated at lower of cost
and net realizable value.

We identified existence and valuation
of inventories as a key audit matter
due to their size, representing 28.48%
of the total assets of the Company as
at 30 June 2022, and the judgment
involved in valuation.

For further information on inventories,
refer to the following:

- Summary of significant
accounting policies,
Inventories (Note 2.7 to the
financial statements).

Stores, spare parts and
loose tools (Note 18) and
Stock-in-trade (Note 19) to
the financial statements.

Sr. | Key audit matters How the matter was addressed in our
No. audit
2. | Inventory existence and valuation

Our procedures over existence and valuation of
inventories included, but were not limited to:

To test the quantity of inventories at all
locations, we assessed the corresponding
inventory observation instructions and
participated in inventory counts on sites.
Based on samples, we performed test
counts and compared the quantities
counted by us with the results of the
counts of the management.

For a sample of inventory items, re-
performed the weighted average cost
calculation and compared the weighted
average cost appearing on valuation
sheets.

On a sample basis, we tested the net
realizable value of inventory items to
recent selling prices and re-performed the
calculation of the inventory write down, if
any.

In the context of our testing of the
calculation, we analyzed individual cost
components and traced them back to the
corresponding underlying documents.

We also made inquiries from management,
including those outside of the finance
function, and considered the results of our
testing above to determine whether any
specific write downs were required.

We also assessed the adequacy of the
disclosures made in respect of the
accounting policies and related notes to
the financial statements.
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The Company recognized net
revenue of Rupees 6,095.257 million
for the year ended 30 June 2022.

We identified recognition of revenue
as a key audit matter because
revenue is one of the key
performance indicators of the
Company and gives rise to an
inherent risk that revenue could be
subject to misstatement to meet
expectations or targets.

For further information, refer to the
following:

- Summary of significant
accounting policies,
Revenue from contracts
with  customers (Note
2.20 to the financial
statements).

- Revenue from contracts
with customers (Note 25
to the financial
statements).

Our procedures included, but were not limited

to:

Sr. | Key audit matters How the matter was addressed in our
No. audit
3. Revenue recognition

We obtained an understanding of the
process relating to recognition of
revenue and testing the design,
implementation and operating
effectiveness of key internal controls
over recording of revenue.

We compared a sample of revenue
transactions recorded during the year
with sales orders, sales invoices,
delivery documents and other relevant
underlying documents.

We compared a sample of revenue
transactions recorded around the year-
end with the sales orders, sales
invoices, delivery documents and other
relevant underlying documentation to
assess if the related revenue was
recorded in the appropriate accounting
period.

We assessed whether the accounting
policies for revenue recognition
complies with the requirements of IFRS
15 'Revenue from Contracts with
Customers'.

We also considered the appropriateness
of disclosures in the financial
statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor's Report Thereon

Management is responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the
information included in the annual report, but does not include the financial statements and
our auditor's report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not

express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,

——————————— 3 ————
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we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in
Pakistan and the requirements of Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and for such internal
control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the
Company'’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management
either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’'s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as
applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in
the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those
risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher
than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.
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. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

. Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company's
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we
are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report.
However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a
going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the financial statements represent the underlying
transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the board of directors, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the financial statements of the current period
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh
the public interest benefits of such communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion:

a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the
Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017).

b) the statement of financial position, the statement of profit or loss, the statement of
comprehensive income, the statement of changes in equity and the statement of cash flows
together with the notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the Companies Act,
2017 (XIX of 2017) and are in agreement with the books of account and returns;
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c) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year
were for the purpose of the Company’s business.

d) Zakat deductible at source under the Zakat and Usher Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of
1980) was deducted by the Company and deposited in the Central Zakat Fund established
under section 7 of that Ordinance.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is
Mubashar Mehmood.

RIAZ AHMAD &COMPANY
Chartered Accountants

Lol ol <

Faisala

Date:Sepimber 29, 2022
UDIN: AR202210158xonVs5HNG
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STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

NOTE 2022 2021
(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)

REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS 25 6,095,257 4,793,145
COST OF SALES 26 (4,995,548) (4,002,325)
GROSS PROFIT 1,099,709 790,820
DISTRIBUTION COST 27 (121,389) (127,336)
ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES 28 (314,364) (248,665)
OTHER EXPENSES 29 (37,531) (31,627)
OTHER INCOME 30 29,721 7,681
FINANCE COST 31 (140,889) (94,096)
PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 515,257 296,777
TAXATION 32 (192,224) (94,473)
PROFIT AFTER TAXATION 323,033 202,304
EARNINGS PER SHARE - BASIC

AND DILUTED (RUPEES) 33 32.56 20.39

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

AéAD AEED OMER SAEED MUHAMMAD KASHIF ZAHOOR

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER DIRECTOR CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
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STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

2022 2021
(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)
PROFIT AFTER TAXATION 323,033 202,304
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Items that will not be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss:
Remeasurements of staff retirement gratuity 5,937 13,960
Deferred income tax related to remeasurements (1,391) (2,964)
4,546 10,996
Surplus on revaluation of freehold land - 135,280
4,546 146,276
Items that may be reclassified subsequently to profit or loss - -
Other comprehensive income for the year -
net of deferred income tax 4,546 146,276
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR 327,579 348,580

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

AéAD AEED OMER SAEED MUHAMMAD KASHIF ZAHOOR

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER DIRECTOR CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER
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NOTE 2022 2021

(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Cash generated from operations 34 769,152 320,907
Finance cost paid (112,633) (78,346)
Income tax paid (83,393) (65,641)
Staff retirement gratuity paid (32,631) (21,788)
Net (increase) / decrease in long term loans (41) 87
Workers' profit participation fund paid (17,487) (8,201)
Net increase in long term deposits and prepayments (45) (112)
Net cash generated from operating activities 522,922 146,906
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Capital expenditure on property, plant and equipment and intangible assets|  (565,972) (243,688)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant and equipment 12,086 6,059
Net cash used in investing activities (553,886) (237,629)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Repayment of long term financing (74,859) (93,753)
Long term financing obtained 140,000 26,399
Dividend paid (17,155) (12,684)
Short term borrowings - net (138,576) 293,424
Net cash (used in) / from financing activities (90,590) 213,386
NET (DECREASE) / INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (121,554) 122,663
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE
BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 166,999 44,336
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE
END OF THE YEAR (NOTE 24) 45,445 166,999

The annexed notes form an integral part of these financial statements.

i

OMER SAEED
DIRECTOR

MUHAMMAﬂmOR

CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

AéAD AEED

CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2022

1. THE COMPANY AND ITS OPERATIONS

Ideal Spinning Mills Limited (the Company) is @ public limited company incorporated in Pakistan on 08 June 1989 under the
Companies Ordinance, 1984 (Now Companies Act, 2017) and listed on Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited. The principal activity of
the Company is manufacturing and sale of yarn, doth and hoslery products. The Company’s registered office is situated at Room
No. 404-405, 4th Floor, Business Centre, Mumtaz Hassan Road, Karachi.

Geographical location and addresses of all business units of the Company, except for the registered office given above are as

follows:
Offices and manufacturing units Address
Head Office 1088, Jail Road, Faisalabad
Spinning and Weaving Units 32-KM Sheikhupura Road, Tehsil Jaranwala, District Faisalabad
Socks Unit 5-KM Cantt. Road, Shorkot City
Regional Office 506-D, 5th Floor, City Tower, 6-K, Main Boulevard, Gulberg-1I, Lahore
Regional Office 1204, 12th Floor, Tricon Corporate Center, Jail Road, Lahore
2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The significant accounting policies applied in the preparation of these finandial statements are set out below. These policies have
been consistently applied to all years presented, unless atherwise stated:

2.1 Basis of preparation
a) Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards as applicable in
Pakistan. The accounting and reporting standards applicable in Pakistan comprise of:

- International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs) issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as notified
under the Companies Act, 2017; and

- Provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017.

Where provisions of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ from the IFRSs, the provisions of and directives
issued under the Companies Act, 2017 have been followed.

b) Accounting convention

These finandial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention, except as otherwise stated in the respective
accounting policies.

c) Critical accounting estimates and judgments

The preparation of these financial statements in conformity with the approved accounting and reporting standards reguires the
use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires the management to exerdse its judgment in the process of applying
the Company's accounting policies. Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience anc
other factors, including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. The areas
where various assumptions and estimates are significant to the Company's financial statements or where judgments were
exercised in application of accounting policies are as follows:

Useful lives, patterns of economic benefits and impairments

The estimate for revalued amount of freehold land is based on valuation performed by external professional valuer. Further, the
Company reviews the value of the assets for possible impairment on an annual basis. Estimates with respect to residual values
and useful lives and pattern of flow of economic benefits are based on the analysis of the management of the Company. Any
change in the estimates in future years might affect the carrying amounts of the respective items of property, plant and
equipment along with intangible asset with a cormesponding effect on the depredation charge and impairment.

Provisions

As the actual outflows can differ from estimates made for provisions due to changes in laws, regulations, public expectations,
technology, prices and conditions, and can take place many years in the future, the carrying amounts of provisions are reviewed
at each reporting date and adjusted to take account of such changes. Any adjustments to the amount of previously recognized
provision is recognized in the statement of profit or loss unless the provision was originally recognized as part of cost of an asset.
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Inventories

Met realizable value of inventories is determined with reference to currently prevailing selling prices less estimated expenditure to
make sales,

Income tax

In making the estimates for income tax currently payable by the Company, the management takes into account the current
income tax law and the dedsions of appellate authorities on certain issues in the past.

Contingencies

The Company reviews the status of all pending litigations and daims against the Company. Based on the judgment and the
advice of the legal advisors for the estimated financial cutcome, appropriate disdosure or provision is made. The actual outcome
of these litigations and claims can have an effect on the carrying amounts of the liabilities recognized at the statement of financial
position date.

Allowance for expected credit losses

The allowance for expected credit losses assessment requires a degree of estimation and judgement. It is based on the lifeime
expected credit loss, based on the Company's experience of actual credit loss in past years.

Revenue from contracts with customers involving sale of goods

When recognizing revenue in relation to the sale of goods to customers, the key performance obligation of the Company is
considered to be the point of delivery of the goods to the customer, as this is deemed to be the time that the customer obtains
control of the promised goods and therefore the benefits of unimpeded access.

Staff retirement gratuity

Certain actuarial assumptions have been adopted as disclosed in Note B.1.4 to the financial statements for determination of
present value of staff retirement gratuity. Any change in these assumptions in future years might affect the current and
remeasurement gains and losses in those years,

d) Amendments to published approved accounting standards that are effective in current year and are relevant to
the Company

Following amendments to published approved accounting standards are mandatory for the Company’s accounting periods
beginning on or after 01 July 2021:

= [FRS 16 (Amendments) 'Leases’;
« Interest Rate Benchmark Reform — Phase 2 which amended IFRS 9 ‘Financial Instruments’, IAS 39 ‘Fnandal Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement’, IFRS 7 "Finandal Instruments: Disclosures’ and IFRS 16 'Leases’,

The above-mentioned amendments to approved accounting standards did not have any impact on the amounts recognized in
prior period and are not expected to significantly affect the current or future periods.

e) Amendments to published approved accounting standards that are effective in current year but not relevant to
the Company

There are amendments to published approved accounting standards that are mandatory for accounting periods beginning on ar
after 01 July 2021 but are considered not to be relevant or do not have any significant impact on the Company’s financial
statements and are therefore not detalled in these finandal statements.

) Amendments to published approved accounting standards that are not yet effective but relevant to the

Following amendments to existing standards have been published and are mandatory for the Company’s accounting periods
beginning on or after 01 July 2022 or later periods:

Classification of liabilities as current or non-current (Amendments to IAS 1 'Presentation of Finandal Statements”) effective for the
annual period beginning on or after 01 January 2023. These amendments in the standards have been added to further darify
when a liability is dassified as current. The standard also amends the aspect of dassification of liability as non-current by
requiring the assessment of the entity’s right at the end of the reporting period to defer the settement of liability for at least
twelve months after the reporting period. An entity shall apply those amendments retrospectively in accordance with T1AS 8
‘Accounting Polides, Changes in Accounting Estimates and Errors’.
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Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a Contract (Amendments to IAS 37 ‘Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent
Assets) effective for the annual period beginning on or after 01 January 2022 amends IAS 1 'Presentation of Finandial
Statements’ by mainly adding paragraphs which darifies what comprise the cost of fulfilling a contract. Cost of fulfilling a contract
is relevant when determining whether a contract is onerous. An entity is required to apply the amendments to contrads for
which it has not yet fulfilled all its obligations at the beginning of the annual reporting period in which it first applies the
amendments (the date of initial application). Restatement of comparative information is not required, instead the amendments
require an entity to recognize the cumulative effect of initially applying the amendments as an adjustment to the opening balance
of retained earnings or other companent of equity, as appropriate, at the date of initial application.

Property, Plant and Equipment: Proceeds before Intended Use (Amendments to IAS 16 'Property, Plant and Equipment”) effective
far the annual period beginning on or after 01 January 2022, darifies that sales proceeds and cost of items produced while
bringing an item of property, plant and equipment to the location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the
manner intended by management e.g. when testing etc., are recognized in profit ar loss in accordance with applicable Standards,
The entity measures the cost of those items applying the measurement requirements of 1AS 2 ‘Inventories’. The standard also
removes the requirement of deducting the net sales proceeds from cost of testing. An entity shall apply those amendments
retrospectively, but only to items of property, plant and equipment that are brought to the location and condition necessary for
them to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management on or after the beginning of the earliest period
presented in the finandal statements in which the entity first applies the amendments, The entity shall recognize the cumulative
effect of initially applying the amendments as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained earnings (or other component of
equity, as appropriate) at the beginning of that earliest period presented.

Following annual improvements to IFRS standards 2018-2020 are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 01
January 2022:

IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments’ — The amendment clarifies that an entity indudes only fees paid or received between the entity
(the borrower) and the lender, including fees paid or received by either the entity or the lender on the other's behalf, when it
applies the '10 per cent’ test in paragraph B3.3.6 of IFRS 9 in assessing whether to de-recognize a finandal liability.

IFRS 16 'Leases’ — The amendment partially amends Illustrative Example 13 accompanying IFRS 16 "Leases’ by exduding the
illustration of reimbursement of leasehold improvements by the lessor. The objective of the amendment is to resolve any
potential confusion that might arise in lease incentives,

Disdosure of Accounting Policies (Amendments to IAS 1 'Presentation of Financial Statements’ and IFRS Practice Statement 2
‘Making Materiality Judgement’) effective for annual periods beginning on or after 01 January 2023. These amendments are
intended to help preparers in dedding which accounting policies to disclose in their financial statements. Earlier, IAS 1 states that
an entity shall disclose its 'significant accounting polides’ in their financial statements. These amendments shall assist the entities
to disclose their ‘material accounting policies’ in their finandal statements,

Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a Single Transaction (Amendments to IAS 12 'Income taxes') effective
for annual periods beginning on or after 01 January 2023. These amendments clarify how companies account for deferred tax on
transactions such as leases and decommissioning obligations.

Change in definition of Accounting Estimate (Amendments to IAS 8 "Accounting Policies, Changes in Accounting Estimates and
Errors) effective for annual periods beginning on or after 01 January 2023. This change replaced the definition of Accounting
Estimate with a new definition, intended to help entities to distinguish between accounting policies and accounting estimates.

The above amendments and improvements are likely to have no significant impact on the finandial statements.

g) Standards and amendments to approved published accounting standards that are not yet effective and not
considered relevant to the Company

There are other standards and amendments to published approved accounting standards that are mandatory for accounting
periods beginning on or after 01 July 2022 but are considered not to be relevant or do not have any significant impact on the
Company’s finandial statements and are therefore not detailed in these financial statements.

2.2 Property, plant, equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment except freshold land and capital work-in-progress are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation
and any identified impairment loss. Freehold land is stated at revalued amount less any identified impairment loss, while capital
work-in-progress is stated at cost less any identified impairment loss. All expenditure connected with specific assets incurred
during installaton and construction period are carried under capital work-in-progress, These are fransferred to operating fixed
assets as and when these are available for use. Cost of operating fixed assets consists of historical cost, borrowing cost pertaining
to the construction / erection period of qualifying assets and other directly attributable cost of bringing the assets to working
condition.
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Increases in the carrying amounts arising on revaluation of freehold land are recognized in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in revaluation surplus in shareholders’ equity. To the extent that increase reverses a decrease previously recognized
in the statement of profit or loss, the increase is first recognized in the statement of profit or loss, Decreases that reverse previous
increases of the same asset are first recognized in other comprehensive income to the extent of the remaining surplus attributable
to the asset; all other decreases are charged to the statement of profit or loss.

Valuations are performed frequently enough to ensure that the fair value of the revalued asset does not differ materially from its
arrying amount.

Subseguent costs are induded in the asset's carrying amount or recognized as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will flow to the Company and the cost of the item can be
measured reliably. All other repair and maintenance costs are charged to the statement of profit or loss during the period in
which these are incurred.

Depreciation

Depredation on property, plant and equipment s charged to the statement of profit or loss applying the reducing balance
method so as to write off the cost / depreciable amount of the assets over their estimated useful lives at the rates given in Note
14.1. The Company charges the depreciation on additions from the month when the asset is available for use and on deletions
upto the month preceding the month of disposal. The assets' residual values, useful lives and depredation methods are reviewed
by the management, at each financial year-end and adjusted if impact on depredation Is significant.

De-recognition

An item of property, plant and equipment is de-recognized upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected
from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset) is induded in the statement of profit or loss in the year the asset is de-
recognized.

2.3 Intangible assets

Computer softwares acquired by the Company is stated at cost less accumulated amortization and any identified impairment loss.
Softwares' costs are only capitalized when it is probable that future economic benefits attributable to the software will flow to the
Company and the same is amortized applying the straight line method at the rates stated in Note 15 to these finandal statements.

2.4  Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not subject to depreciation and are tested annually for impairment. Assets that are
subject to depreciation are reviewed for impairment at each reporting date or whenever events or changes in drcumstances
indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognized for the amount for which asset's
carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. Recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and
value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there are separately
Identifiable cash flows (cash-generating units). Mon-financial assets that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible
reversal of the impairment at each reporting date. Reversals of the impairment losses are restricted to the extent that the asset’s
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined, net of depreciation or amortization, if
impairment losses had not been recognized. An impairment loss or reversal of impairment loss is recognized in the statement of
profit or loss.

2.5 Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity and recognized at their face value. Discount or premium on issuance of shares is
separately shown in statement of changes in equity, Transaction costs directly attributable to the issuance of new shares are
shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax.

2.6 Borrowing cost

Interest, mark-up and other charges on long-term financing are capitalized up to the date of commissioning of respective
qualifying assets acquired out of the proceeds of such long-term financing. All other interest, mark-up and other charges are
recognized in statement of profit or loss.

2.7 Inventories

Inventories, except for stock in transit and waste stock, are stated at lower of cost and net realizable value, Cost is determined as
follows:

Stores, spare parts and loose tools

Usable stores, spare parts and loose tools are valued principally at moving average cost, while items considered obsolete are
carried at nil value. Items in transit are valued at cost comprising invoice amount plus other charges paid thereon.
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Stock-in-trade
Cost of raw materials, work-in-process and finished goods is determined as follows:
(i) For raw materials: Weighted average cost.

(ii) For work-in-process and finished goods: Average manufacturing cost including
a portion of production overheads.

Materials in transit are valued at cost comprising invoice value plus other charges paid thereon. Waste stock is valued at net
realizable value.

Net realizable value signifies the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business less estimated cost of completion and
estimated costs necessary to make a sale.

2.8 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash in hand, cash at banks on current, saving and deposit accounts and other short term
highly liquid instruments that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash and which are subject to insignificant risk of
changes in values.

2.9 Staff retirement benefit

The Company operates defined benefit plan - unfunded gratuity scheme for its permanent employees, who have completed the
minimum qualifying period of service as defined under the scheme. The liabilities relating to defined benefit plan are determinad
through actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit Credit Method. The method involves making assumptions about discount
rates, future salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the long term nature of these benefits, such estimates are subject tc
certain uncertainties. Remeasurements changes which comprise actuarial gains and losses are recognized immediately in other
comprehensive income.

2,10 Provisions

Provisions are recognized when the Company has a present (legal or constructive) obligation as a result of past events and itis
probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligations and a reliable
estimate of the amount can be made.

2.11 Taxation
Current

Provision for current tax is based on the taxable income for the year determined in accordance with the prevailing law for
taxation of income. The charge for current tax is calculated using prevailing tax rates or tax rates expected to apply to the profit
for the year, if enacted. The charge for current tax also includes adjustments, where considered necessary, to provision for tax
made in previous years arising from assessments framed during the year for such years.

Deferred

Deferred tax is accounted for using the liability method in respect of all temporary differences arising from differences between
the carrying amount of assets and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation
of the taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences and deferred tax assets
to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available against which the deductible temporary differences, unused
tax losses and tax credits can be utilized.

Deferred tax is calculated at the rates that are expected to apply to the pericd when the differences reverse based on tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting date. Deferred tax is charged or credited in the statement of
profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity. In this
case, the tax is also recognized in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

2.12 Dividend and other appropriations

Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognized as a liability in the Company's financial statements in the
period in which itis declared and other appropriations are recognized in the period in which these are approved by the Board of
Directors.

2,13 Finandial instruments

i) Recognition, classification and measurement of finandal instruments
Financial assets
a) Recognition
The Company initially recognizes finandial assets on the date when these are originated.
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b) Classification

The Company classifies its financial assets at amortized cost. A financial asset is measured at amortized cost if both of following
conditions are met:

- the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold finandal assets in order to collect contractual cash
flows; and

- the contractual terms of the finandal asset give rise on spedfied dates to cash flows that the solely payments of princpal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

c) Measurement

At initial recognition, the Company measures a financial asset at its fair value plus transaction costs that are directly attributable
to the acquisition of the financial asset. Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Company’s business
model for managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics of the asset. The Company classifies its debt instruments at
amortized cost. Finandal assets that are held for collection of contractual cash flows where those cash flows represent solely
payments of principal and interest are measured at amortized cost. Interest income from these financial assets is included in
other income using the effective interest rate method. Any gain or loss arising on de-recognition is recognized directly in profit or
loss and presented in other income / (other expenses) together with foreign exchange gains and losses.

Financial liabilities

Finandial liabilities are dassified and measured at amortized cost or at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss (FYTPL), A finandal
liability is classified as at FVTPL if it is classified as held-for-trading, it is a derivative or it is designated as such on initial
recognition. Financial liabilities at FVTPL are measured at fair value and net gains and losses, including any interest expense, are
recognized in profit or loss. Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest

method. Interest expense and foreign exchange gains and losses are recognized in statement of profit or loss, Any gain or loss
on de-recognition is also included in profit or loss.

i) Impairment of financial assets

The Company recognizes loss allowances for ECLs on financial assets measured at amortized cost. The Company measures loss
allowances at an amount egual to lifetime ECLs, except for the following, which are measured at 12-month ECLs:

- bank balances for which credit risk (.e. the risk of default occurring over the expected life of the finandal instrument) has not
increased significantly since initial recognition.

12-month ECLs are the portion of ECLs that result from default events that are possible within the 12 months after the reporting
date (or a shorter period if the expected life of the instrument is less than 12 months).

When determining whether the credit risk of a financial asset has increased significantly since initial recognition and when
estimating ECLs, the Company considers reasonable and supportable information that is relevant and available without undue
cost or effort. This includes both quantitative and qualitative information and analysis, based on the Company's historical
experience and informed credit assessment and including forward-looking information.

The Company assumes that the credit risk on a finandal asset has increased significantly if it is more than past due for a
reasonable period of time. Lifetime ECLs are the ECLs that result from all possible default events over the expected life of a
finandal instrument. 12-month ECLs are the portion of ECLs that result from default events that are possible within the 12
months after the reporting date (or a shorter period if the expected life of the instrument is less than 12 months).

Loss allowances for financial assets measured at amortized cost are deducted from the gross carrying amount of the assets.

The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off when the Company has no reasonable expectations of recovering of
a financial asset in its entirety or a portion thereof. The Company individually makes an assessment with respect to the timing
and amount of write-off based on whether there Is a reasonable expectation of recovery. The Company expects no significant
recovery from the amount written off. However, finandal assets that are written off could still be subject to enforcement activities
in arder to comply with the Company's procedures for recovery of amounts due.

At each reporting date, the Company assesses whether finandal assets are credit-impaired. A finandial asset is ‘credit-impaired’
when one or more events that have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset have occurred.

Evidence that a financial asset is credit-impaired includes the following observable data:

- significant finandal difficulty of the debtor;

- @ breach of contract such as a default;

- the restructuring of a loan or advance by the Company on terms that the Company would not consider otherwise; or
it is probable that the debtor will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganization,
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iii)  De-recognition
Finandal assets

The Company de-recognizes a finandal asset when the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or it transfers
the rights to receive the contractual cash flows in a transaction in which substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of
the financial asset are transferred, or it neither transfers nor retains substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership and
does not retain control over the transferred asset. On de-recognition of a financial asset, in its entirety, the difference between
the asset's carrying amount and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is recognized in the statement of profit or
loss.

Financial liabilities

The Company de-recognizes a finandial liability (or a part of financial liability) from its statement of financial position when the
obligation spedfied in the contract is discharged or cancelled or expired. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an
exchange and modification is treated as de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the
difference in respective carrying amount is recognized in the statement of profit or loss,

iv) Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and finandal liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the financial statements when there is a legal
enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and the Company intends either to settle on a net basis or to realize the assets
and to settle the liabilites simultaneously.

2.14 Borrowings

Finandng and barrowings are initially recognized at fair value, net of attributable transaction costs incurred and are subsequently
stated at amortized cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption value is recognized
in the staterent of profit or loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

2,15 Government grants

Grants from the Government are recognized at their fair value where there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be
received and the Company will comply with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and recognized in the profit or loss over the period necessary to match them
with the costs that they are intended to compensate.

2.16 Trade debts and other receivables

Trade debts are initially recognized at fair value and subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest
method, less any allowance for expected credit losses.,

Other receivables are recognized at amortized cost, less any allowance for expected credit losses.
2,17 Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognized at fair value. Any directly atiributable transaction costs are recognized in the statement of
profit or loss as incurred. They are subsequently remeasured at fair value on regular basis and at each reporting date as a
minimum, with all their gains and losses, realized and unrealized, recognized in the statement of profit or loss.

2,18 Trade and other payables

Liabilities for trade and other amounts payable are recognized initially at fair value and are subsequently measured at amortized
cost using the effective interest method.

2.19 Functional and presentation currency along with foreign currency transactions and translation

Items included in these financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the
Company operates (the functional currency). The financial statements are presented in Pak Rupees, which is the Company's
functional and presentation currency. All monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currendes are translated into Pak Rupees at
exchange rates prevailing at the reporting date. Transactions in foreign currendies are translated into Pak Rupees at exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the translation at year end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currendes are charged or credited to statement of profit or loss. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured in terms
of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated into Pak Rupeses at exchange rates prevailing at the date of transaction.
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2.20 Revenue from contracts with customers
i) Revenue recognition
Sale of goods

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized at the point in time when the customer obtains control of the goods, which is
generally at the ime of delivery.

Rendering of services

Revenue from a contract to provide services is recognized over time as the services are rendered based on either a fixed price or
an hourly rate.

Interest

Interest income is recognized as interest accues using the effective interest method. This is a method of calculating the
amortized cost of a finandial asset and allocating the interest income over the relevant period using the effective interest rate,
which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of the finandal asset to the net
carrying amount of the financial asset.

Other revenue
Other revenue is recognized when it is received or when the right to receive payment is established.
ii) Contract assets

Contract assets arise when the Company performs its performance obligations by transferring goods to a customer before the
customer pays its consideration or before payment is due. Contract assets are treated as finandal assets for impairment
purposes.

iii) Right of return assets

Right of return assets represents the right to recover inventory sold to customers and is based on an estimate of customers who
may exercise their right to return the goods and daim a refund. Such rights are measured at the value at which the inventory
was previously carried prior to sale, less expected recovery costs and any impairment,

iv) Contract liabilities

Contract liability is the obligation of the Company to transfer goods to a customer for which the Company has received
consideration from the customer. If a customer pays consideration before the Company transfers goods, a contract liability is
recognized when the payment is made. Contract liabilities are recognized as revenue when the Company performs its
performance obligations under the contract.

2.21 Segment reporting

Segment reporting is based on the operating (business) segments of the Company. An operating segment is a component of the
Company that engages in business activities from which it may earn revenues and incur expenses, induding revenues and
expenses that relate to the transactions with any of the Company's other components. An operating segment's operating results
are reviewed regularly by the Chief Executive Officer to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment and
assess its performance, and for which discrete finandal information is available.

Segment results that are reported to the Chief Executive Officer include items directly attributable to a segment as well as those
that can be allocated on a reasonable basis. Those income, expenses, assets, liabilities and other balances which cannot be
allocated to a particular segment on a reasonable basis are reported as unallocated.

The Company has three reportable business segments: Spinning (Producing different quality of yarn using natural and artificial
fibers), Weaving (Produding different quality of greige fabric using yarn} and Socks (Manufacturing socks from yarn, elastic and
other andllary materials).

Transactions among the business segments are recorded at arm's length prices using admissible valuation methods. Inter
segment sales and purchases are eliminated from the total.

2.22  Earnings per share

The Company presents Earnings Per Share (EPS) data for its ordinary shares. EPS is calculated by dividing the profit attributable
to ardinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.
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2.23  Contingent assets

Contingent assets are disdosed when the Company has a possible asset that arises from past events and whose existence will
only be confirmed by the occurrence or nan-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of
the Company. Contingent assets are not recognized until their realization becomes certain.

2.24 Contingent liabilities
Contingent liability is disclosed when the Company has a possible obligation as a result of past events whose existence will only
be confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within the control of the
Company. Contingent liabilities are not recognized, only disclosed, unless the possibility of a future outflow of resources is

considered remate. In the event that the outflow of resources associated with a contingent liability is assessed as probable, and if
the size of the outflow can be reliably estimated, a provision is recognized in the finandal statements.

3. SPONSORS' LOANS

These loans are interest free and payable at the discretion of the Company.

2022 2021
(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)
4. EQUITY PORTION OF SHAREHOLDERS' LOANS
Balance as at 01 July 159,358 159,358
Gain on recognition of shareholder's loans at fair value (Note 6.3) 23,933 -
Balance as at 30 June 183,291 159,358
5. SURPLUS ON REVALUATION OF FREEHOLD LAND
Balance as at 01 July 235,857 100,577
Surplus arised on revaluation of freshold land during the year - 135,280
Balance as at 30 June 235,857 235,857
6. LONG TERM FINANCING
From banking companies - secured
Long term loans (Note 6.1) 19,639 92,598
Diminishing musharakah (Note 6.2) 140,000 -
159,639 92,598
Unsecured
From sponsor director / shareholder (Mote 6.3) 176,048 180,733
335,687 273,331
Less: Current partion shown under current liabilities 162,804 72,812
172 883 200,519
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2022 2021
(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)
63 From sponsor director / shareholder

Opening balance 180,733 165,416

Add: Fair value adjustment (Note 31) 19,248 15,317
199,981 180,733

Less: Gain on recognition of shareholder's loan at fair value (Note 4) 23,933 -

Closing balance 176,048 180,733

6.3.1 This represents unsecured interest free loans obtained from a sponsor director [ shareholder of the Company. The loan of Rupees
203.565 milion which was repayable in one bullet installment on 31 October 2022 has been rescheduled upto Rupees 65 million
which will be repaid in one bullet installment on 30 May 2025. Remaining balance of Rupess 138.565 million will be repaid in
one bullet installment on 31 October 2022, A portion of this loan along with the sponsors' loan shown in Note 3 are subordinated
to bank borrowings amounting to Rupees 306.616 million. Fair value of these loans was estimated at the present value of future
cash flows discounted at effective rates of 9.26% and 16.54% (2021: 9.26%) per annum .

7. DEFERRED INCOME TAX LIABILITY

Taxable temporary difference

Difference in tax and accounting bases of operating fixed assets 133,416 102,092
Deductible temporary differences
Staff retirement gratuity (23,774) (20,062)
Unused tax losses - (41,268)
Provision for GIDC (5,007) (4,409)
Deferred income - Government grant (33) (433)
Allowances for doubtful receivables (75) (4,034)
(28,889) (70,206)
104,527 31,886
71 Movement in the deferred income tax liability balance is as follows:
At the beginning of the year 31,886 -
Add /[ (less):
-difference in tax and accounting bases of operating fixed assets 31,324 102,092
-staff retirement gratuity (3,712) (20,062)
-unused tax losses 41,268 (41,268)
-provision for GIDC (598) (4,409)
-deferred income - Government grant 400 (433)
-allowances for doubtful receivables 3,959 (4,034)
72,641 31,886
At the end of the year 104,527 31,886
7.1.1 Charged to the statement of profit or loss:
Net movement of temporary differences (Note 7.1) 72,641 31,886
Less: Remeasurement of staff retirement gratuity 1,391 2,964
71,250 28,922

7.2 Deferred income tax assets have been recognized to the extent that the realization of related tax benefits is probable from
reversals of existing taxable temporary differences and future taxable profits. Therefore, the Company has not recognized
deferred income tax asset against minimum tax available for carry forward under Section 113 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001
of Rupees 103.341 million (2021: Rupees 140.413 million).

8. DEFFERED LIABILITIES

Staff retirement gratuity (Note 8.1) 101,469 94,479
Deferred income - Government grant (Note 8.2) - 141
Deferred GIDC (Note 8.3) = 1,769

101,469 96,389

—_— e
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8.1

8.1.1

8.1.2

8.1.3

B.1.4

8.1.5

8.1.6

Staff retirement gratuity

Opening balance

Provision for the year (Note 8.1.2)
Retirement benefit paid
Remeasurements (Note 8.1.3)

Closing balance

Changes in present value of defined benefit obligation

Present value of defined benefit obligation
Current service cost
Past service cost
Interest cost
Retirement benefit paid
Remeasurements:
Actuarial losses from changes in demographic assumptions
Actuarial losses from changes in finandal assumptions
Experience adjustments

Provision for the year
Current service cost

Past service cost
Interest cost

Remeasurements
Actuarial losses from changes in demographic assumptions

Actuarial losses from changes in finandal assumptions
Experience adjustments

Principal actuarial assumptions used

Discount rate used for interest cost in profit or loss charge (per annum)

Discount rate used for year end obligation (per annum)
Expected rate of salary increase (per annum)

Average duration of the defined benefit obligation
Mortality rates

Withdrawal rate
Retirement assumption

Ideal Group

2022 2021
(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)
94,479 90,875
45,558 39,352
(32,631) (21,788)
(5,937) (13,960)
101,469 94,479
94 479 90,875
35,118 31,147
2,624 1,407
7,816 6,798
(32,631) (21,788)
5,639 .
1,003 465
(12579)  (14425)
101 469 94,479
35,118 31,147
2,624 1,407
7,816 6,798
45 558 39 352
5,639 -
1,003 465
(12,579) (14,425)
{5,937) (13,960)
2022 2021
10.00% 8.50%
13.25% 10.00%
12.25% 9.00%
2 6

SLIC 2001-05 SLIC 2001-05
set back 1 year set back 1 year
Age based Age based
Age 60 Age 60

The estimated expenses to be charged to the statement of profit or loss for the year ending on 30 June 2023 is Rupees 54.554

million,

Expected benefit payments for the future years:

One year ] 1-2 years 2-4 years | Over 4 years
-------------- RUPEES IN THOUSAND--------=-==--

44,145 46,100 68,721 158,957

—_— e
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8.1.7 Sensitivity analysis on defined benefit obligation:
The sensitivity of the defined benefit obligation as at reporting date to changes in the weighted prindipal assumption is:
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2022 2021
Discount rate 1.00% 1.00%
Increase in assumption (Rupees in thousand) (2,050) (5,404)
Decrease in assumption (Rupees in thousand) 2,155 6,120
Future salary increase 1.00% 1.00%
Increase in assumption (Rupess in thousand) 2,573 6,385
Decrease in assumption (Rupees in thousand) (2,490) (5,746)

The above sensitivity analysis is based on a change in an assumption while holding all other assumptions constant. In practice,
this is unlikely to occur, and changes in some of the assumptions may be correlated. When calculating the sensitivity of the
defined benefit obligation to significant actuarial assumptions, the same method (present value of the defined benefit obligation
calculated with the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period) has been applied as when calculating the
gratuity liability recognized within the statement of financial pesition.

The methods and types of assumptions used in preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change compared to the previous year
except for certain changes as given in Note 8.1.4.

8.1.8 Risk assodiated with the scheme
a) Final salary risk (linked to inflation risk)

The risk that the final salary at the time of cessation of service is greater than what we assumed. Since the benefit is calculated on
the final salary (which will closely reflect inflation and other macroeconomic factors), the benefit amount increases as salary
increases.
b) Demographic risks
Mortality risk

The risk that the actual mortality experience is different than the assumed mortality. This effect is more pronounced in
schemes where the age and service distribution is on the higher side.

Withdrawal risk

The risk of actual withdrawals experience is different from assumed withdrawal probability. The significance of the
withdrawal risk varies with the age, service and the entitled benefits of the benefidary.

2022 2021
(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)
8.2 Deferred income - Government grant

Balance as on 01 July 2,041 3,984
Add: Recognized during the year - 1,749
Less: Amortized during the year (Note 30) (1,900) (3,692)
141 2,041
Less: Current portion shown under current liabilities (Note 12) (141) {1,900)
Balance as at 30 June - 141

B.2.1 This represents deferred government grants in respect of long term loans obtained under SBP Refinance Scheme for payment of
wages and salaries as disclosed in Note 6.1.1 to these financdial statements,

B.3 Gas Infrastructure Development Cess (GIDC) payable

Balance as on 01 July 20,765 21,383
Less: Gain on remeasurement of GIDC - (1,846)
Add: Adjustment due to impact of IFRS 9 (Note 31) 605 1,228
21,370 20,765
Less: Current portion shown under current liabilities (Note 12) (21,370) (18,996)
- 1,763

B8.3.1 This represents Gas Infrastructure Development Cess (GIDC) which was levied through GIDC Act, 2015. Supreme Court of
Pakistan upheld the GIDC Act, 2015 to be constitutional and intra vires. This liability has been recognized at fair value using
discount rate of 9.16% per annum.
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2022 2021
(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)
9, TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES
Creditors (Note 9.1) 301,207 206,836
Accrued liabilities 170,033 137,270
Contract liabilities - unsecured 45,611 41,550
Income tax deducted at source 726 494
Sales tax payable 9,812 27,808
Fair value of forward exchange confracts 14,539 -
Workers' profit participation fund (Note 9.2) 28,821 15,885
Workers' welfare fund (Note 9.3) 10,305 4,484
Others 1,500 -
582,554 434,327
9.1 These include amounts due to following related parties:
Blue Moon Filling Station 7,511 2,604
Ideal Socks 2,949 2,949
10,460 5,553
9.2 Workers' profit participation fund
Balance as on 01 July 15,885 7,763
Interest for the year (Note 31) 1,602 444
Provision for the year (Note 29) 28,821 15,879
46,308 24,086
Less: Payments made during the year 17,487 8,201
Balance as on 30 June 28,821 15,885

9.2.1 Interest is paid at prescribed rate under the Companies Profit (Workers' Participation) Act, 1968 on funds
retained by the Company.

9.3 Workers' welfare fund

Balance as on 01 July 4,484 -
Add: Provision for the year (Note 29) 7,862 4,484
12,346 4,484
Less: Adjusted during the year 2,041 -
10,305 4,484
10. ACCRUED MARK-UP
Long term financing 2,160 1,163
Short term borrowings 14,486 10,582
16,646 11,745

11. SHORT TERM BORROWINGS

From banking companies - secured

Cash finances (Note 11.1 and 11.4) - 181,490

Running finances (Note 11.2 and 11.4) 151,144 139,488

Other short term finances (Note 11.3 and 11.4) 352,278 321,020
503,422 641,998

Others - unsecured

Other related parties (Note 11.5) 225,938 225,938
729,360 867,936

—_— e
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11.1 These form part of total credit fadlity of Rupees 1,350 million (2021: Rupees 975 million). Rates of mark-up
range from 8.95% to 15.28% (2021: 8.75% to 9.59%) per annum during the year on balances outstanding.

11.2 These form part of total credit facility of Rupees 270 million (2021: Rupees 250 million). Rates of mark-up range
from 8.95% to 16.62% (2021: 9.03% to 9.58%) per annum during the year on balances outstanding.

11.3 These form part of total credit faclity of Rupees 1,020 million (2021: Rupees 880 million). Rates of mark-up
range from 8.90% to 17.64% (2021: 8.79% to 10.31%) per annum during the year on balances outstanding.

11.4 These finances are secured against joint pari passu charge over present and future fixed and current assets,
pledge of stocks and lien on import / export documents. These are further secured by the personal guarantee of
the directors of the Company.

11.5 These represent interest free loans from Chief Executive Officer, directors and sponsor of the Company to meet
the working capital requirements of the Company. These are repayable on demand, subject to the condition
mentioned in Note 6.1.1.

2022 2021
(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)
12. CURRENT PORTION OF DEFERRED LIABILITIES
Current portion of deferred income - Government grant (Note 8.2) 141 1,900
Current portion of GIDC payable (Note 8.3) 21,370 18,996
21,511 20,896

13. CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS
a) Contingendies

i) The Company filed an appeal on 23 July 2019 before Commissioner Inland Revenue (Appeals) against the
sales tax order in original No. 33 / 2009 dated 15 May 2019 made by the Assistant Commissioner Inland
Revenue to pay further tax amounting to Rupees 9.211 million (2021: Rupees 9.211 million) under section 3
(1A) of the Sales Tax Act, 1990 on supplies made to unregistered persons during the period from 01 July 2017
to 30 June 2018 along with the default surcharge under section 33 of the Act. This appeal was rejected on 29
October 2019, Against this dedsion, the Company filed an appeal on 07 December 2019 before Appellate
Tribunal Inland Revenue which is pending for dedsion. The management is hopeful of positive outcome of the
appeal and therefore no provision has been made in these financial statements, on the advice of legal counsel,

ii) The Company received show cause notice from Assistant Commissioner Inland Revenue dated 16 December
2019 for further tax not paid amounting to Rupees 11.957 million (2021: Rupees 11.957 million) on sale to
unregistered persons from 01 July 2018 to 30 June 2019 along with default surcharge and penalty under section
34(1) and section 33 of Sales Tax Act, 1990 respectively. Against the order, an appeal has been filed by the
Company on 06 May 2020 before Commissioner Inland Revenue (Appeals) which is pending for decision. No
provision has been made in these financial statements as the management is hopeful for positive outcome, on the
advice of the legal counsel.

iii) The Company has challenged, before Lahore High Court, Lahore, the provisions of SRO 491(1)/2016 dated
30 June 2016 issued under section 8(1)(b) of the Sales Tax Act, 1990 whereby through amendment in the earlier
SRO 1125(1)/2011 dated 31 December 2011, daim of input sales tax in respect of packing material has been
disallowed. The Company filed a Writ Petition No. 96551/2017 dated 03 November 2017 before the Lahore High
Court, Lahore. Consequently, the Company has accounted for input sales tax amounting to Rupees 4.791 million
(2021: Rupees 4.791 million) paid on such items as receivable balance. The Lahore High Court, Lahore through
its order dated 25 June 2019 has dismissed the petition filed by the Company. Being aggrieved by the order, an
Intra Court Appeal (ICA) No. 1247 of 2020 dated 14 January 2020 has been filed by the Company in Lahore
High Court, Lahore. The Company is confident of positive outcome of the appeal, on the advice of legal counsel,
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iv) An appeal was filed in Lahore High Court, Lahore on 09 April 2018 against cost of supply of Re-Gasified
Liquefied Natural Gas (RLNG) by SNGPL amounting to Rupees 4.953 million (2021: Rupees 4.953 million). This
appeal was allowed by Lahore High Court, Lahore on 13 December 2019 by asking Oil and Gas Regulatory
Authority (OGRA) to conduct a public hearing to determine the level of cost of supply of RLNG. Keeping in view
the opinion of the legal counsel of the Company, the related provision is not made in these finandal statements
as there are strong grounds that the decision of the proposed public hearing of OGRA will be decided in favour of
the Company.

v) Sindh High Court, Karachi made decision on 04 June 2021 about the levy of Sindh Infrastructure Cess,
against which the Company was contingently liable for Rupees 6,177 million (2021: Rupees 2.812 million)
although guarantees were submitted by the Company's Bank for the same amount. Against the decision, the
Company lodged a constitution petition No. 4841 / 2021 dated 13 August 2021, in Supreme Court of Pakistan
(SCP). Thereafter, on 01 September 2021, SCP allowed the petition, suspended the judgment of Sindh High
Court, Karachi and leave to appeal was granted. However, the case is not yet fixed for hearing by SCP. On advice
of legal counsel, in view of possible favourable outcome, no provision is accounted for in these financial
statements.

vi) Guarantees of Rupees 56.012 million (2021: Rupees 30.336 million) are given by the banks of the
Company to Sui Northern Gas Pipelines Limited (SNGPL) against gas connections and to Faisalabad Electric
Supply Company Limited against electriaty connections.

b) Commitments
i) Commitments for capital expenditure are of Rupees 4.207 million (2021: Rupees 194.244 million).

i} Letters of credit other than for capital expenditure are of Rupees 60.102 million (2021: Rupees 110.003
million).

iii) Outstanding foreign currency forward contracts are of Rupees 409.941 million (2021: Rupees Nil)

2022 2021
(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)
14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Operating fixed assets (Note 14.1) 1,730,812 1,272,784
Capital work-in-progress (Note 14.2) 32,120 56,632

1,762,932 1,329,416
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14.1.2 Forced sale value of frechold land as per last revaluation held on 23 June 2021 was Rupess 225.760 milllon,

14.1.3 Depreciaton charged during the yeas has been allocsted as follows:

2022 2021
(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)
Cost of sales (Note 26) 95,058 83,356
Administrative expenses (Note 28) 24,796 15,277
119 354 98,633
14,14  Particulars of immovable properties (e land and buildings) in the name of the Company are as follows:
Covered
Particulars Lecation Area area
Acres 5q. Ft.
Manufacturing fadllities and vacant land 32-KM Shetkhupura Road, Tehsi| Jaranwala, District Falsalabad 22.544 392 967
Head office (Note 14,1.5) 1088, Jad Road, Fasalabad 0,250 24 728
Regional office (Note 14.1.6) 1204, 12th Aoor, Tricon Corporate Center, Jail Road, Lahore 2 5273
14.1.5 This building is constructed and apitslized on the land which is in the name of a director of the Company.
14.1.6 The covered area at this lo@tion consists of bulding only because of mult-storey plaza,
14.1.7  Detail of operating fxed assets, excesding the book value of Rupees 500,000, disposed of during the year is as follows:
Accumulated | Net book Sale Mode of .
Description Quantity | Cost Depreciation| Value proceeds Gain disposal Particular of purchaser
MO e RUPEES IN THOUSAND---~===-======== —
Vehicles
Toyota Fortuner ALB-300 1 10,149 169 9,980 10,000 20  Negotiation Targ Mehmoad, Chak No.
162 R.B. Tehsil Chak
Jhurmra, Destrict Falsalabad
Aggregate of other ftems of property,
plant and equipment with individual book
values not exceeding Rs 500,000 20,508 18,685 1,823 2,088 263
30,657 18,854 11,803 12,086 283
14,2 Capital work=-in-progress
Plant and Intangible | |
" I Vehicles l assers Total
——————— RUPEES IN THOUSAND —————
At 30 Juna 2020 ' J 3,200 3,200
Mg Additions during the year 133,994 81,832 2,715 220,501
mmmmat:mmmvwﬂdms; (115,062)  (51,118) {BB3) (167,069)
At 30 June 2021 20,892 30,714 5.026 56,632
Add; Addditions during the yiear 168,050 44,655 1,920 214,625
Less: Transferred to m*’ s | (188,942)  (4B,896) (1,299)  (239,137)
At 30 June 2022 - 26473 5 547 32120
2022 021
(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)
15, INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Computer softwares
Net carrylng value basis
Opening net book value 4,806 5,236
Additions during the year 1,299 B89
Less; Amortization (Note 28) 1,651 1,319
Closing net book valuse 445 4,806
Gross carrylng amount
Cost 8,116 6,817
Accumulated amortization (3,662) (2,011}
Closing net book value 4,454 4 806
Amortization rate (per annum) 20% and 20%
33.33%
16. LONG TERM LOANS
Considered good - secured 487 107
Less: Current portion shawn under current assets (Note 21) 456 107
4l =
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16.1 These represent interest free loans were given to employees for meeting their personal expenditure. These are
secured against balance to the credit of employees in the staff retirement gratuity and are recoverable in equal
monthly installments.

16.2 The fair value adjustment in accordance with the requirements of IFRS 9 'Financdial Instruments' arising in respect of
staff loans is not considered material and hence not recognized.

2022 2021
(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)
17. LONG TERM DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS
Security deposits (Note 17.1) 1,789 1,789
Prepayments 387 339
2,176 2,128
Less: Current portion shown under current assets (Note 22) 223 220
1,953 1,908
17.1 These mainly include interest free security deposits placed with utility companies for the provision of utility
connections.
18. STORES, SPARE PARTS AND LOOSE TOOLS
Stores 46,425 38,821
Spare parts (Note 18.1) 55,586 39,968
Loose tools 339 310
102,350 79,099
18.1 These indude spare parts in transit of Rupees Nil (2021: Rupees 3.539 million).
19, STOCK-IN-TRADE
Raw materials (Note 19.1 and Note 19.2) 321,870 488,714
Work-in-process 100,206 58,438
Finished goods (Note 19.3) 434,836 201,710
Waste 2,136 2,993
859,048 751,855

19.1 Raw materials include stock in transit of Rupees 20.867 million (2021: Rupees 33.772 million).

19.2 These indude stock of Rupees Nil (2021: Rupees 0.953 million) sent to outside parties for processing.

19.3 These indude stock of Rupees 17.540 million (2021: Rupees Nil) available with outside parties after conversion.
20. TRADE DEBTS

Considered good:

Secured (against letters of credit) 4,724 54,114

Unsecured 364,196 203,962
368,920 258,076

Less: Allowance for expected credit loss (Note 20.4) 275 18,819
368,645 239,257

20.1 Trade debts in respect of foreign and local jurisdictions is given under:

North America 57,626 56,121

Europe 175,611 75,642

Australia 28,349 -

Pakistan 107,059 107,494
368,645 239,257

20.2 Revenue from the sale of goods is recognized at the time of delivery, while payment is generally due within 10 to 30
days in case of local sales and 30 to 60 days in case of export sales.
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20.3 As at 30 June 2022, trade debts amounting to Rupees 38.504 million (2021: Rupees 106.415 million) were past due
but not impaired. These relate to a number of independent customers from whom there is no recent history of
default. The ageing analysis of these trade debits is as follows:

2022 2021
(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)
Upto 1 month 27,059 73,047
1 to 6 months 11,445 33,147
More than & months " 221
38,504 106,415
20.4 Allowance for expected credit loss
Opening balance 18,819 18,050
Add: Recognized during the year (Note 29) 217 B81
19,036 18,931
Less:
Reversal of allowances for expected credit loss (Note 30) (630) (103)
Bad debts written off (18,131) (9)
(18,761) (112)
Closing balance 275 18,819
21, LOANS AND ADVANCES
Considered good:
Employees - interest free and secured
— Executives
against expenses 349 -
against salary 110 725
459 725
— Other employees:
against expenses 1,930 1,239
against salary 1,572 1,884
3,502 3123
3,961 3,848
Current portion of long term loans {Note 16) 456 107
Advances to suppliers / contractors 23,871 16,662
Letters of credit 4,795 5,558
33,083 26,175
Less: Provision for doubtful loans and advances (Mote 21.1) 45 178
33,038 25,997
21.1 Provision for doubtful loans and advances
Opening balance 178 -
Add: Recognized during the year (Note 29) 45 178
223 178
Less: Loans and advances written off (178) -
Closing balance 45 178
22, SHORT TERM DEPOSIT AND PREPAYMENTS
Deposit 40 40
Prepayments 398 749
Current portion of long term deposits and prepayments (Note 17) 223 220
661 1,009
23. OTHER RECEIVABLES
Considered good:
Sales fax refundable [ receivable 46,241 47,012
Export rebate and duty drawback 16,741 67,215
Others 260 54
63,242 114,281
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2022 2021
(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)
24, CASH AND BANK BALANCES
With banks:
On current accounts 40,681 165,207
On PLS saving accounts 2,460 549
43,141 165,756
Cash in hand 2,304 1,243
45,445 166,999
25. REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH CUSTOMERS
Local sales (Note 25.1) 4,292,091 3,394,856
Export sales 1,796,562 1,358,581
Export rebate and duty drawback 6,604 39,708

6,095,257 4,793,145

25.1 Local sales

Yarn / socks 3,749,466 2,826,483
Waste 33,796 34,007
Sizing income 4,684 5,588
Conversion income / cloth sale 1,234,030 1,094,157
Polyester / viscose - 11,971

5,021,976 3,972,206
Less: Sales tax 729,885 577,350

4,292,091 3,354,856

25.2 The Company has recognized revenue of Rupees 36.438 million (2021: Rupees 17.751 million) from amounts
included in contract liabilities at the year end.

26. COST OF SALES

Raw materials consumed (Note 26.1) 3,298,007 2,413,008
Cost of raw materials sold 1,315 9,018
Salaries, wages and other benefits (Note 26.2) 600,864 520,884
Stores, spare parts and loose tools consumed 385,222 321,877
Packing materials consumed 164,553 133,346
Sizing materials consumed 45,028 36,386
Outside processing / conversion and other charges 83,197 52,141
Repair and maintenance 10,783 8,483
Fuel and power 570,520 437,495
Insurance 12,598 8,226
Other factory overheads 2,440 4,142
Depreciation (Note 14.1.3) 95,058 83,356

5,269,585 4,028,362
Work-in-process

Opening stodk 58,438 48,829
Closing stock (100,206) (58,438)
(41,768) (9,609)
Cost of goods manufactured 5,227,817 4,018,753
Finished goods
Opening stock 204,703 188,275
Closing stock (436,972) (204,703)
(232,269) (16,428)

4,995,548 4,002,325
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2022 2021
{RUPEES IN THOUSAND)
26.1 Raw materials consumed
Opening stock 488,714 356,151
Add: Purchased during the year 3,131,163 2,545,571
3,619,877 2,901,722
Less: Closing stock (321,870) (488,714)

3,298,007 2,413,008

26.2 Salaries, wages and other benefits incude staff retirement gratuity amounting to Rupees 30.166 million (2021: Rupees
27.784 million).

27. DISTRIBUTION COST

salaries and other benefits (Note 27.1) 18,698 17,314
Outward freight and handling 50,627 45,538
Commission to selling agents 45,542 62,995
Travelling and accommodation 5,034 244
Postage and telephone = 12
Fee and subscription - 660
Others 1,488 573

121,389 127,336

27.1 Salaries and other benefits include staff retirement gratuity amounting to Rupees 0.291 million (2021: Rupees 0.390
million).

28. ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Salaries and other benefits (Mote 28.1) 148,491 125,627
Directors' remuneration 11,600 8,750
Rent, rates and taxes 14,295 10,040
Legal and professional 242 1,307
Insurance 3,540 2,515
Travelling and conveyance 13,878 3,843
Vehicles' running 30,275 20,894
Entertainment 13,586 20,981
Auditor's remuneration (Note 28.2) 1,360 1,160
Advertisement 161 172
Postage and telephone 8,736 6,595
Electricity, gas and water 9,976 9,516
Printing and stationery 3,326 4,450
Repair and maintenance 9,325 2,109
Fee and subscription 9,599 5,844
Miscellaneous 9,627 8,266
Amortization (Note 15) 1,651 1,319
Depreciation (Note 14.1.3) 24,296 15,277
314,364 248,665

28.1 Salaries and other benefits include staff retirement gratuity amounting to Rupees 15.101 million (2021: Rupees 11.178
million).

28.2 Auditor's remuneration

Audit fee 1,200 1,000
Half yearly review 110 110
Other certification 50 50

1,360 1,160
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2022 2021
(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)
29. OTHER EXPENSES

Donation (Note 29.1) 200 -
Workers' profit participation fund (Note 9.2) 28,821 15,879
Allowance for expected credit loss (Note 20.4) 217 881
Net loss of fire in stock godowns = 2,386
Stores, spare parts and loose tools written off . 160
Workers welfare fund (Note 9.3) 7,862 4,484
Net exchange loss - 7,659
Loans and advances written off 386 -
Provision for doubtful loans and advances (Note 21.1) 45 178
37,531 31,627
29.1 No directors or their spouses had any interest in the donee.
30. OTHER INCOME
Income from financial assets
Profit on deposits with banks (Note 30.1) 62 15
Reversal of allowance for expected credit losses (Note 20.4) 630 103
Net exchange gain 26,846 n
27,538 118
Income from non-financial assets
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment 283 2,025
Gain on remeasurement of GIDC - 1,846
Amortization of deferred grant (Note 8.2) 1,900 3,692
2,183 7,563
29,721 7,681
30.1 Rate of profit on bank deposits as disclosed in Note 24 ranges from 2.75% to 12.25% (2021: 2.75% to 5.41%) per
31. FINANCE COST
Mark-up on:
Long term finandng 6,214 14,351
Short term borrowings 102,847 53,352
Fair value adjustment of loans from sponsor director [ shareholder (Note 6.3) 19,248 15,317
Interest an workers' profit participation fund (Note 9.2) 1,602 444
Bank charges and commission 10,373 9,404
Adjustment due to impact of IFRS 9 on GIDC (Note 8.3) 605 1,228
140,889 94,096
32. TAXATION
Charge for the year:
Current (Note 32.2) 122,012 64,906
Prior year (1,038) 645
120,974 65,551
Deferred 71,250 28,922
192,224 94 473

32.1 The provision for current taxation represents alternative corporate tax, final tax on export sales and super tax on income
calculated as per section 4C of Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. Reconciliation of tax expense and product of accounting profit
multiplied by the applicable tax rate is as follows:
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32.2 Reconciliation of tax expense and accounting profit
Accounting profit before taxation

Tax on accounting profit @ 17 %

Effect of:

-lower rate on income under final tax regime
-prior year adjustment

-super tax

-deferred tax

Ideal Group

2022
(RUPEES IN
THOUSAND)

515,257

— ey

87,594

(5,851)
(1,038)
40,269
71,250

192,224

e ——

32.3 Provision for taxation for the prior year was based on minimum taxation under section 113 and tax deducted on export
sales under section 154 of the Income Tax Ordinance, 2001. Accordingly, reconciliation for the tax expense and accounting

profit was not prepared.
33. EARNINGS PER SHARE - BASIC AND DILUTED
There is no dilutive effect on the basic earnings per share which is based on:

2022 2021
Profit attributable to ordinary shareholders (Rupees in thousand) 323,033 202,304
Weighted average number of ordinary shares (Numbers) g 920 000 9 920 000
Earnings per share {Rupees) 32.56 20.39
2022 2021
(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)
34. CASH GENERATED FROM OPERATIONS

Profit before taxation 515,257 296,777
Adjustments for non-cash charges and other items:
Depredation 119,354 98,633
Amortization 1,651 1,319
Gain on disposal of property, plant and equipment (283) (2,025)
Provision for staff retirement gratuity 45,558 39,352
{Reversal of) / allowance for expected credit losses - net (413) 778
Finance cost 140,889 94,096
Gain on remeasurement of GIDC - (1,846)
Amortization of deferred grant (1,900) (3,692)
Stores, spare parts and loose tools written off - 160
Provision for workers' profit participation fund 28,821 15,879
Loans and advances written off 386 -
Provision for doubtful loans and advances 45 178
Waorking capital changes (Mote 34.1) (80,213) (218,702)

769,152 320,907

34.1 Working capital changes

(Increase) / decrease in current assets
- Stores, spare parts and loose tools (23,251) (31,113)
- Stock-in-trade (107,193) (158,600)
- Trade debts (128,975) (79,751)
- Loans and advances (7,472) (1,453)
- Short term deposit and prepayments 348 (831)
- Other receivables 51,039 (28,592)

(215,504) (300,340)
Increase in trade and other payables 135,291 81,638

(80,213) (218,702)
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34.2 Recmndliation of movements of liabilities to cash flows arising from finandng activities:

2022 2021
torg | short term |unclaimed | 1. | |Long term | Short term | Unclaimed | L

financing borrowings | dividend financing || borrowings || dividend

llllllll --= (RUPEES IN THOUSAND) (RUPEES IN THOUSAND) --=----=======:
Balance as at 01 July 27331 867,936 1,476 1,142,743 323,425 574,512 1,264 899,201
Long term financing obtained 140,000 - - 140,000 26,399 - - 26,399
Dividend declared - - 17,856 17,856 - - 12,896 12,896
Other chianges - non cash
adjustments (2,785) a . (2,785) 17,260 . 2 17,260
Short term borrowings - net - [138,576) - (138,576) - 293,424 - 293,424
Repayment of long term financing  {74,859) = = (74,859) (93,753) = = {93,753)
Cividend paid - - {17,155)  (17,155) - - (12,684) (12,684)
Balance as at 30 June 335,687 729,360 2,177 1,067,224 273,331 867,936 1,476 1,142,743

35. REMUNERATION OF CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER, DIRECTOR AND EXECUTIVES

The aggregate amount charged In the financdal statements for remuneration including benefits to Chief Executive Officer, directors and executives of
the Company is as follows:

Chief Executive Officer Director Executives
2022 | 2021 2022 | 2021 2022 | 2021
RUPEES IN THOUSAND-

Managerial remuneration 4,000 3,204 3,200 2,400 368,943 23,747
Allowances

House rent 1,800 1,142 1,600 1,080 5,902 2,369

Others 200 454 - 120 3,894 1,187

Staff retirement gratuity paid . - o i s 6329

6,000 4,800 4,800 3,600 48,739 33,632

Number of persons 1 1 i 1 15 11

35.1 Chief Executive Officer, some directors and certain exacutives are provided with Company maintained vehides and are entiied to reimbursement of
travelling expenses and other utilites.

35.2 During the year, an amount of Rupees 800,000 (2021: Rupees 350,000) was paid to eight directors (2021 eight directors) as meeting fee.
35.3 Apart from the meeting fee, no remuneration was paid to non-executive directors of the Company.

2022 2021

36. NUMBER OF EMPLOYEES
Number of empioyees as at 30 June 1 440 1321
Average number of employees during the year 1356 1315

37. TRANSACTIONS WITH RELATED PARTIES

The related parties comprise assoclated company / undertakings, other related parties and key management personnel. The Company In the normal
course of business carries out transactions with various related parties. Detail of transactions with related parties, other than those which have been
spedifically disdosed elsewhere in these finandal statements is as follows:

2022 2021
(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)
Name Basis of relationship Nature of transactions
Associated company / undertakings:
Bue Moon Filling Station Director of the Company is the member  Fuel purchased 4,907 6,712
of Board of Trustees
Wagas Spinning Mills {Private) Limited Common directorship Rental expense 3,300 3,050
Purchase of goods - 11,505
Ided Socks Directors of the Company are the Rentad expense 3,720 3,220
members of Board of Trustess
Other related parties
Directors and sponsors Members of board of directors, key Loans obtained from - BOO
management personne and sponsor directors/sponsor-net
Rental expense - 350
Dividend paid 14,921 9,468

37.1 Detall of compensation to key management personnél comprising of Chief Executive Officer, directors and executives Is disclosed in Note 35.
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PLANT CAPACITY AND ACTUAL PRODUCTION
Spinning

100 % plant capacity converted to 20s count based on 3
shifts per day for 1095 shifts (2021: 1095 shifts)

Actual production converted to 20s count based on 3 shifts
per day for 1093 shifts shifts (2021: 1095 shifts)

Weaving

100 % plant capadty at 60 picks based on 3 shifts per day
for 1095 shifts (2021: 1095 shifts)

Actual production converted to 60 picks based on 3 shifts
per day for 1093 shifts (2021: 1093 shifts)

Socks

Capacity of such unit cannot be determined due to nature of its operations.

REASON FOR LOW PRODUCTION

(Kgs.)

(Kgs.)

(S5q.Mtr.)

(Sq.Mtr.)

2022

17,788,155

15,785,416

28,800,830

23,650,321

Ideal Group

2021

17,788,155

15,939,322

27,346,823

22,864,299

Under utilization of available capacity for spinning and weaving is mainly due to periodical scheduled

maintenance and Balancing, Modernization and Replacement (BMR) activities carried out during the year.
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39.4 All non-current assets of the Company as at reporting date are located and operating in Pakistan.
39.5 Revenue is recognized at the point in time as per terms and conditions of underlying contracts with customers.
39.6 Revenue from major customers

The Company's revenue is earned from a long mix of customers,

40. EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

The Board of Directors of the Company has proposed a cash dividend for the year ended 30 June 2022 of Rupees 2.00 (2021:
Rupees 1.80) per share at their meeting held on September 29, 2022. However, this event has been considered as non-
adjusting event under IAS 10 ‘Events after the Reporting Period’ and has not been recoagnized in these financial statements.

41, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
41.1 Financial risk factors

The Company's activities expose it to certain financial risks of market risk (currency risk, other price risk and interest rate risk),
credit risk and liquidity risk. The Company's overall risk management programme focuses on the unpredictability of finandal
markets and seeks to minimize potential adverse effects on the Company's financial performance. The Company uses
derivative finandal instruments to hedge certain risk exposures.

Risk management is carried out by the Company's finance department under policies approved by the Board of Directors. The
Company's finance department evaluates and hedges finandal risks. The Board provides prindples for overall risk
management, as well as policies covering specific areas such as currency risk, other price risk, interest rate risk, credit risk,
liguidity risk, use of derivative finandal instruments, non-derivative financial instruments and investment of excess liquidity.

(a) Market risk
(i) Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a finandal instrument will fluctuate due to changes
in foreign exchange rates. Currency risk arises mainly from future commerdal transaction of receivables and
payables that exist due to transactions in foreign currencies.

The Company is exposed to currency risk arising from various currency exposures, primarily with respect to United
States Dollar (USD) and Euro. Currently the Company's foreign exchange risk exposure is restricted to the amounts
receivable from the foreign entities. The Company’s exposure to currency risk was as follows:

2022 2021
Trade debts - USD 1,247,368 802,909
Trade debts - Euro 21,949 95,077
Trade and other payables - USD = (41,112)
Net exposure - USD 1,247,368 761,797
Net exposure - Euro 21,949 95,077
Following exchange rates were applied during the year:
Rupees per US Dollar
Average rate 181.65 163.03
Reporting date rate 205.50 157.80
Rupees per Euro
Average rate 201.68 188.62
Reporting date rate 215.23 188.12

Sensitivity analysis

If the functional currency, at reporting date, had weakened / strengthened by 5% against the USD and Euro with all
other variables held constant, the impact on profit after taxation for the year would have been Rupees 12.031
million (2021: Rupees 6.364 million) higher / lower, mainly as a result of exchange gains / losses on translation of
foreign exchange denominated financial instruments. Currency risk sensitivity to forelgn exchange movements has
been calculated on a symmetric basis. In management's opinion the sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative of
inherent currency risk at the year end exposure does not reflect the exposure during the year.
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(i) Other price risk

Other price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a finandial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market prices. The Company is not exposed to commodity price risk.

(iii) Interest rate risk

This represents the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a finandal instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market interest rates.

The Company's interest rate risk arises from long term financing, short term borrowings and bank balances in saving
accounts. Finandal instruments at variable rates expose the Company to cash flow interest rate risk. Finandial
instruments at fixed rate expose the Company to fair value interest rate risk.

At the reporting date, the interest rate profile of the Company’s interest bearing financial instruments was:

2022 2021

(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)
Fixed rate instruments
Financial liabilities
Long term financing 19,639 57,298
Floating rate instruments
Financial assets
Bank balances - saving accounts 2,460 549
Financial liabilities
Long term financing 140,000 35,300
Short term borrowings 503,422 641,998

Fair value sensitivity analysis for fixed rate instruments

The Company does not account for any fixed rate finandal assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss,
Therefore, a change in interest rate at the reporting date would not affect profit or loss of the Company.

Cash flow sensitivity analysis for variable rate instruments

If interest rates at the year end date, fluctuates by 1% higher / lower with all other variables held constant, profit
after taxation for the year would have been Rupees 3.060 million (2021: Rupees 6.301 million) lower / higher,
mainly as a result of higher / lower interest expense / income on floating rate financial instruments. This analysis is
prepared assuming the amounts of finandal instruments outstanding at reporting date were outstanding for the
whole year.

(b) Credit risk

Credit risk represents the risk that one party to a finandal instrument will cause a financial loss for the other party by
failing to discharge an obligation. The carrying amount of finandal assets represents the maximum aedit exposure. The
maximum exposure to credit risk at the reporting date was as follows:

Loans and advances 2,179 2,716
Deposits 1,829 1,829
Trade debts 368,645 239,257
Other receivables 260 54
Bank balances 43,141 165,756
416,054 409,612

The credit quality of financial assets that are neither past due nor impaired can be assessed by reference to external credit
ratings (if available) or to historical infermation about counterparty default rate.
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To manage exposure to credit risk in respect of trade debts, management performs credit reviews taking into account the
customer’s financial position, past experience and other factors. Sales contracts and credit terms are approved by the
senior management and where considered necessary, advance payments are obtained from certain parties. Export sales
are usually secured through letters of credit. The management has set a maximum credit period limit for each type of
customers in order to reduce the credit risk.

The Company applies the IFRS 9 simplified approach to measure expected credit losses which uses a lifetime expected
loss allowance for all trade debts. Management uses actual historical credit loss experience, credit risk characteristics and
past days due, adjusted for forward-looking factors specdific to the debtors and the economic environment to determine
expected credit loss allowance.

Rating 2022 l 2021
s 2" | agency || (RUPEES IN THOUSAND)

Banks
Habib Metropolitan Bark Limited Al+ AA+ PACRA 9,454 2,433
MCB Bank Limited Al+ AAA PACRA 6,742 16,681
Allied Bank Limited Al+ AAA PACRA 279 82
United Bank Limited A-1+ AAA VIS 306 67
Faysal Bank Limited Al+ AA PACRA 33 2,640
Mational Bank of Pakistan Al+ AAA PACRA 567 167
Habib Bank Limited A-1+ AAA VIS 12,233 13,905
Askari Bank Limited Al+ AA+ PACRA 217 10,029
Bank Alfalah Limited Al+ AA+ PACRA 1,721 7
Bank Al-Habib Limited Al+ AAA PACRA 80 2
The Bank of Punjab Al+ AA+ PACRA 1,051 108,077
Soneri Bank Limited Al+ AA- PACRA 151 87
The Bank of Khyber A-1 A+ VIS - 28
Samba Bank Limited A-1 AA VIS 542 1,415
AlBaraka Bank (Pakistan) Limited A-1 A+ VIS 1,093 933
Meezan Bank Limited A-1+ AAA VIS 8,671 9,203
BankIslami Pakistan Limited Al A+ PACRA 1 .

43,141 165,756

The Company's exposure to credit risk and allowance for expected credit losses related to trade debts is disclosed in Note
20.

Due to the Company's long standing business relationships with these counterparties and after giving due consideration to
their strong financial standing, management does not expect non-performance by these counterparties on their obligations
to the Company. Accordingly the credit risk is minimal.

() Liquidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that an entity will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations assodated with financial liabilities.

The Company manages liguidity risk by maintaining sufficient cash and the availability of funding through an adequate
amount of committed credit facilities. At 30 June 2022, the Company had Rupees 2,136.578 million (2021: Rupees
1,463.002 million) available borrowing limits from financial institutions and Rupees 45.445 million (2021: Rupess
166.999 million) cash and bank balances. Management believes the liguidity risk to be low. Followings are the contractual
maturities of financial liabilities, including interest payments. The amounts disclosed in the tables are undiscounted cash
flows.
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Contractual maturities of finandal liabilities as at 30 June 2022:

Carrying Contractual More than 2
iy cash i 6 months or less 6-12 months 1-2 years years
RUPEES IN THOUSAND:
Non-derivative finandal liabilities:
Long term financng 335,687 423,842 169,997 14,539 54,538 184,768
Trade and other payables 472,740 472,790 472,740 = = =
Unclaimed dividend 2,177 2177 2177 - s x
Accrued mark-up 16,646 16,6496 16,646 - * =
Short term borrowings 729,360 772,992 772,992 A = 2
Derivative finandal liabilities 14,539 14,539 14,539 . - -
1571149 1,702,936 1,449,091 14,539 54,538 184 768
Contractual maturities of finandal liabilities as at 30 June 2021:
Carrying Contractual 5 More than 2
Aot cash 6 months or less 6-12 months 1-2 years years
RUPEES IN THOUSAND
Non-derivative finandal liabilities:
Long term financing 273,331 299,136 60,869 32,357 205910 -
Trade and other payables 344,106 344,106 344,106 - - -
Unclaimed dividend 1476 1,476 1,476 - = -
Acouad mark-up 11,745 11,745 11,745 = = -
Short term borrowings 867,936 928,437 927,552 Bas = -
1,498,594 1,584,900 1,345 748 33,242 205910 =

The contractual cash fiows relating to the above finandal liabilites have been determined on the basis of interest rates f mark up rates effective as at 30 June,
The rates of interest / profit / mark-up have been disclosed in Note 6 and Note 11 to these financal statements,

41.2 Financial instruments by categories

2022 2021
(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)
At amortized cost
Assets as per statement of finandal position
Loans and advances 2,179 2,716
Deposits 1,829 1,829
Trade debis 368,645 239,257
Other receivables 260 54
Cash and bank balances 45,445 166,999
418,358 410,855
2022 2021
At amortized At amortized
coak FVTPL Total coat
wmmemmremamss s e RUPEES IN THOUSAND —=-===smemenann —
Liabilities as per statement of financial position
Liong term financing 335,687 335,687 273,331
Trade and other payables 472,740 14,539 487,279 344,106
Unclaimed dividend 2,177 - 2,177 1476
Acrued mark-up 16,646 16,646 11,745
Short term barrowings 729,360 729,360 867,936
1,556,610 14,530 1,571,149 1,498,504
41.2 Recondliation of finandal assets and financial liabilities to the line items presented in the statement of financial position is as follows:
2022 2021
Total as per
Other than Total s pow Finandal | | Otherthan | | . tement of
Finandal assets i tad nascli statement of ts financial financial
finandal position assets
(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)
Assets as per statement of finandal position
Loans and advances 2,179 30,900 33,079 2716 23,281 25,997
Deposits and presayments 1,829 785 2,614 1,829 1,008 2,917
Trade debts 368,645 - 368,645 239,257 - 239,357
Other receivables 260 62,982 63,242 = 114,227 114,281
Cash and bank balances 45,445 = 45,445 166,999 = 166,999
418,358 24,667 513,025 410,855 138,596 549451
2022 2021
Total as per
Finandial Other than By, Finandal | Opher AR | statement of
liabilities financial fiabil Nrandal ition liabilities liabilit finandial
pasition
(RUPEES IN THOUSAND)
Liabilities as per statement of finandal position
Long term financing 335,687 - 335,687 273,331 = 273,331
Trade and other payables 472,740 109,814 582,554 344,106 90,221 434,327
Unclaimed dividend 2,177 = 2,177 1,476 = 1476
Acousd mark-up 16,646 = 16,646 11,745 = 11,745
Short term barrowings 729,360 = 729,360 BG&7,936 = B67,936

— 1556610 100814 _ 166643 _ 1998594 90,421
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41.4 Offsetting financial assets and finandial liabilities

As on reporting date, recognized financial instruments are not subject to offsetting as there are no enforceable master netting arrangements
and similar agreements.

41.5 Capital risk management

The Company's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide
returns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital, In order
to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company may adjust the amount of dividends to be paid to shareholders, issue new shares or
sell assets to reduce debt. Consistent with others in the industry and the requirements of the |enders, the Company monitors the capital
structure on the basis of gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as borrowings divided by total capital employed. Borrowings represents long
term financing (except subordinated loans) and short term borrowings obtained by the Company as referred to in MNote 6 and Note 11
respectively, Equity represents 'total equity' as shown in the statement of financial position and the portion of ioan from sponsor director /
shareholder which is subordinated to bank borrowings as referred in Note 6.3. 1. Total capital employed includes total equity’ plus "borrowings’,
The Company's strategy remained unchanged from last year.

2022 2021
Borrowings (Rupees in thousand) 1,000,231 1,076,451
Total equity (Rupess in thousand) 1,424,845 1,090,789
Total capital employed  (Rupees in thousand) 2,424,676 2,167,240
Gearing ratio (Percentage) 41,25 49,67

The decrease in gearing ratio resulted primarily from gaining profit after taxation.

42. RECOGNIZED FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS - FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
Fair value Is the amount that would be received to sell an asset or either pay or transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
participants at the measurement date. Consequently, differences may arise between the carrying vaiue and the fair value estimates. The

Company classifies fair value measurement using a fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs used in making the
measurements. The fair value hierarchy is as follows:

Lewel 1: Quoted market price in an active market for an identical instrument.

Level 2: The fair value of financial Instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example, over-the-counter derivatives) is
determined using valuation techniques which maximize the use of obsarvable market data and rely as little as possible on entity-speafic
estimates, I all significant Inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, the instrument |s included in level 2,

Level 3: Valuation techniques using significant un-observable inputs.

|[Recurring fair value measurements levell | Llevel2 | lLewel3 | Total
------------------ YT T R L ———

At 30 June 2022

Financial liabilities

Derivative finandal liabillties - 14,539 : 14,539

At 30 June 2021 ; : i .

The above table does not indude fair value information for financial assets and financial liabilities not measured at fair value if the carrying
amounts are a reasonable approximation of fair value. Due to short term nature, carrying amounts of certain finandial assets and finandial
liabilities are considered to be the same as their fair value. For the majority of the non-current receivables, the fair values are also not
significantly different to thelr carrying amounts.

There were no transfers between levels 1 and 2 for recurring fair value measurements during the year. Further there was no transfer out of
level 3 measurements.

43. RECOGNIZED FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS - NON FINANCIAL ASSETS
(i)  Fair value hierarchy

Judgments and estimates are made in determining the fair values of the non-financial assets that are recognized and measured at fair value in
these financial statements, To provide an indication about the reliability of the inputs used in determining fair value, the Company has classified
its non-finandial assets Into the following three levels.

[ levell | Levelz | Lewel3 | Total |
------------------ RUPEES IN THOUSAND
At 30 June 2022
Freehold land . 272,072 - 272,072
At 30 June 2021
Freehold land - 265,600 - 265,600
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(ii) \'aluat_lnn techniques used to determine level 2 fair values
The Company obtains independent valuation for its freehold land (classified as property, plant and equipment) at least after every three years.
The management updates the assessment of the fair value of freehold land, taking into account the mast recent independent valuation. The
management determines freehold land's value within a range of reasonable fair value estimates. The best evidence of fair value of freehold land
is current prices in an active market for similar lands.
Valuation processes
The Company engages external, independent and qualified valuer to determine the fair value of the Company’s freehold land at least after every
three years. The latest valuation of freehold land was performed by Messrs Tristar International Consultant (Private) Limited as at 23 June
2021,
Changes in fair values are analyzed during the valuation discussion between the management and the valuers. As part of this discussion the
team presents a report that explains the reason for the fair value movements.

44, CORRESPONDING FIGURES
Corresponding figures have been re-arranged, wherever necessary for the purpose of comparison. However, no significant re-arrangements
have been made,

45, DATE OF AUTHORIZATION FOR ISSUE
These finandial statements were authorized for issue on September 29, 2022 by the Board of Directors of the Company.

46, GENERAL
Figures have been rounded off to the nearest thousand of Rupees unless, otherwise stated.

AMJAD SAEED OMER SAEED MUHAMMAD KASHIF ZAHOOR
CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER DIRECTOR CHIEF FINANCIAL OFFICER

The Company's policy is to recognize transfers into and transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels as at the end of the reporting period.

There were no transfers between levels 1 and 2 for recurring fair value measurements during the year. Further, there was no transfer in and
out of level 3 measurements.

Ideal Group
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Pattern of Shareholding
As on June 30, 2022

TYPE OF NUMBER OF TOTAL
SHARE HOLDERS | SHARE HOLDERS | SHARES HELD
1 100 512 42462
101 500 631 279112
501 1000 /8 73272
1001 5000 89 227911
5001 10000 18 143264
10001] 15000 D 59707
40001 45000 3 122000
55001| 60000 1 56500
60001| 65000 1 60176
170001| 175000 1 175000
210001| 215000 1 214274
225001| 230000 1 227000
535001| 540000 1 535726
625001| 630000 1 628396
880001| 885000 1 883000
890001| 895000 1 890726
920001| 925000 1 922300
930001| 935000 2 1865876
965001| 970000 1 968300
1540001 1545000 1 1544998
TOTAL =====>> 1,350 9,920,000
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Categories of Shareholding

As at June 30,2022

Ideal Group

Categories of Shareholding Numbers | Shares held| Percentage (%)
Associated companies Undertakings and Related Parties
NIT and ICP 3 1000 0.01
Directors,Chief Executive & their
spouse and Minor Children
Mr.Muhammad Saeed Sheikh ( Chairman ) 1 5000 0.05
Mr.Amjad Saeed (Chief Executive) 2 2080724 20.98
Mrs.Rubina Amjad ( Director ) 2 1105000 11.14
Mr.Umar Saeed { Director ) 2 1110000] 11.19
Mr.Khizar Saeed { Director ) 2 1857300| 18.72
Mr.Ahsan Saeed ( Director ) 1 1105876 11.15
Mr.Muhammad Azhar (Independent Director) 1 500 0.01
Mr.Muhammad Asif (Independent Director) 0 0
Executives
Public Sector Companies and Corporations
Banks,Development Finance Institutions, 1 369 0.00
Non - Banking Finance Institutions,
Joint Stock Companies 5 2400 0.02
Insurance Companies, Modaraba and Mutual Funds 1 628396 6.33|
Individuals 1327 1961147 19.77
Others 2 62288 0.63]
Total 1350 r 9920000 100.00
SHAREHOLDERS HOLDING FIVE PERCENT OR MORE VOTING INTEREST IN THE COMPANY
Name of Shareholder No of Sharrs held Percentage|
Mr.Amjad Saeed 2080724 20.98
Mrs.Rubina Amjad 1105000 11.14
Mr.Umar Saeed 1110000 11.19
Mr.Khizar Saeed 1857300 18.72
Mr.Ahsan Saeed 1105876 11.15
Ms.Kanwal Saeed 1024800 10.33
CDC-TRUSTEE NATIONAL INVESTMENT (UNIT) TRUST 628396 6.33
Statement showing shares bought and sold by directors, CEO,CFO,
Company secretary and the minor family members
form 01 July 2021 to 30 June 20202
S.NO Name Designation Shares bought Shares sold

1 |Mr.Mohammad Saeed Sheikh Chairman

2 |Mr.Amjad Saeed Chief Executive

3 |Mrs.Rubina Amjad Director

4 |Mr.Omer Saeed Director

5 |Mr.Khizer Saeed Director

6 |Mr.Ahsan Saeed Director

7 |Mr.Muhammad Asif Independent Director

8 |Mr.Muhammad Azhar Independent Director

9  |Mr. Muhammad Kashif Zahur | Chief Financial Officer

10 |Mr.Muhammad Nadeem Company Secretary
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M/S F.D.Registrar Services (Pvt) Lid.,

1705,17" Floor Saima Trade Tower-A
I.1.Chundrigar Road Karachi-74000

Dear Sir

The Share Registrar Ideal Spinning Mills Ltd
Request for E-Transmission of Annual Report

Pursuant to S5.R.0.787(1)/2014 dated September 08,2014 issued by the Securities and Exchange
Commission of Pakistan (SECP),kindly note requisite information for electronic transmission of annual
balance sheet and profit and loss account, auditor's report and directars report etc. ( Audited Financial
Statements) along with notice of annual general meeting (Notice) {collectively referred to as 'Annual
Report’} of Ideal Spinning Mills Ltd (ISM).The email address provided hereunder may please be recorded
in the members’ register of the Company being maintained under Section 473 of the Companies Act
2017.

Particulars

Name of shareholder

Folio No./ CDC ID No.

CNIC No.

Passport No.(for Foreign shareholder
E-mail address

Land line Telephone No.

Cell No.

It is stated that the above-mentioned information is correct and | hereby agree and give my consent for
future transmission of the Company’s Annual Report via email address provided above.

It is further stated that being the shareholder of Company, it my responsibility to communicate any
change in the registered email address in a timely manner.

Yours Truly,

Shareholder’s Signature
Complete Address - -

Copy to
The Company Secretary

Ideal Spinning Mills Ltd

404/05, Business Centre, Mumtaz Hasan Road
Karachi
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Ideal Group

Dear Shareholder,

This is to inform you that in accordance with the Section 242 of the Companies Act, 2017, any dividend payable in cash shall
only be paid through electronic mode directly into the bank account designated by the entitled shareholder. Please note that giving
bank mandate for dividend payments is mandatory and in order to comply with this regulatory requirement and to avail the
facility of direct credit of dividend amount in your bank account, you are requested to please provide the following information to
your respective CDC Participant / CDC Investor Account Services (in case your shareholding is in Book Entry Form OR to our
Independent Share Registrar Office: M/s. F.D. Registrar Services (Pvt) Limited., 1705, 17" Floor, Saima Trade Towers - A, LL
Chundrigar Road, Karachi (in case your shareholding is in Physical Form);

Details of Shareholder
Name of Shareholder
Name of the Company
Folio/CDC Account No:
CNIC No: (Copy Attached)
Cell/ Landline Numbers
Email Address
Details of Bank Account
Title of Bank Account:
International Bank Account | P | K
Number [] B’AN} 24-d]g“5 {Kindly provide your accurate IBAN number after consulting with your respective bank branch since in case of any
"Mandatury" erroror omission in given IBAN, the company will not be held responsible in any manner for any delay or cause in your
cash dividend payment).
Branch Name & Address:

Itis stated that the above mentioned information is correct and in case of any change therein, I /we will immediately intimate
participant / Share Registrar accordingly.

Signature of Shareholder
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FORM OF PROXY
34" ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

IWe Slo/Dlo/W/o
of beirg a member
of IDEAL SPINNING MILLS LIMITED and holder of Ordinary Shares as per Share Register
Folio No. and/or CDC Participant 1D No. and Account / Sub-account
No do hereby appoint Mr./Mrs./Miss

Folio No./CDC No. of failing him/her .
Mr./Mrs./Miss Folio No./CDC No. of

as my. our proxy to attend, act and vote for mefus on my/our behalf at Annual Genera
Meeting of the Company to be held on Friday, October 28, 2022 at 11.30 a.m at 404 -405, 4" Floor
Business Centre Mumtaz Hassan Road Karachi and at any adjournment thereof in the same manner
as |/we myselflourselves would vote if personally present at such meeting.

Signature of Shareholder Signature of Proxy -
Folio / CDC A/C NO. Five Rupess
Revenue Stamp
Signed this day of 2022
WITNESS:
1 Signature -- 2. Signature
Name Name
Address Address
CNIC No. - CNIC No.
or Passport No. or Passport No.
Notes:
1. A member entitled to attend and vote at the meeting may appoint a proxy in writing to attend the
meeting and vote on member's behalf.
’. 4 If a member is unable to attend the meeting. He/She may complete and sign this form and send it

to the Company's Share Registrar M/s. F.D. Registrar Service (SMC-PVT) Limited 1705 17"
Floor Saima Trade Tower A, |.I. Chundrigar Road Karachi so as to reach not less than 48 hours
before the time appointed for holding the Meeting.

3. For CDC Account Holders / Corporate Entities; in addition to the above the following
Requirements have to be met:

(a) The proxy form shall be witnessed by two persons whose names, addresses and CNIC
numbers be stated on the form.

(b) Attested copies of CNIC or the passport of the beneficial owners and the proxy shall be
provided with the proxy form.

© The proxy shall produce his original CNIC or original passport at the time of the meeting. In
case of a corporate entity, the Board of Directors resolution/ power of attorney with specimen
signature shall be submitted (unless it has been provided earlier) along with proxy form to the
Company.
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